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1 education efforts that you undertake with your

2 voters.

3 Are you going to undertake education

4 efforts with voters to help them understand the

5 changes that Senate Bill 90 made?

6 A We already have undertaken that and we

7 will continue to do so.

8 Q And if constituents have questions about
9 how to ask for a vote-by-mail ballot or how to drop
10 off the vote-by-mail ballot c¢i where to vote in

11 person, are those questions that you and your staff
12 answer?

13 MS. SIVALINGAM: Objection, form.

14 THE WITNESS: Pardon me?

15 MS. SIVALINGAM: I was just objecting for
16 to the " record. Objection to form. Compound.
17 BY MR. JAZIL:

18 Q Okay. ©So we'll take those one at a time
19 because of the objection, Supervisor Hays.
20 Do you and your staff answer questions
21 from voters about how to vote by mail?
22 A Routinely.
23 Q Do you answer questions about how to use
24 drop boxes if people have questions?
25 A Absolutely.
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d I appreciate that, Supervisor.
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«
17 Supervié%i, I'd like to turn your attention to an
18 exhibit that my friend Cyrus shared with you. I'm
19 going to use the screen share function so we both

20 look at it at the same time.
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1 bill that I'm aware of having been published at that
2 time.
3 Q Yes, sir. And so if we go to page 3,
4 there's this question here about "vote-by-mail
5 requests must be made each election year."
6 A Yep.
7 Q Do you see that?
8 A Sure do.
9 Q And there you suggest that requests not be
10 required every election year because there are
11 municipal elections that happen?
12 A That is correct.
13 Q Do you understand Senate Bill 90 as
14 requiring vote-bv-mail requests to be made every
15 year?
16 A No, sir
17 MS. SIVALINGAM: Objection to form. Calls
18 for a legal conclusion.
19 BY MR. JAZIL:
20 Q Supervisor Hays, my understanding of your
21 earlier testimony is there are going to be five
22 municipal elections held in your county this year,
23 is that correct?
24 A Yes, sir.
25 Q Are vote-by-mail requests that you have on
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1 Q Yes, sir. Supervisor Hays, as we were

2 talking about the changes made to Senate Bill 90

3 during the legislative process, there was your

4 testimony before the legislature in early March that
5 was discussed. And as part of that testimony there
6 were some discussion about your elderly mother being
7 able to vote. Do you recall that, sir?

8 A Absolutely.

9 Q Do you know whether or not your elderly
10 mother will be able to vote in the upcoming election
11 assuming, God willing, she is with us?

12 A Well, we pray every day that she's with us
13 and come February she*ll hit a hundred. You're

14 invited to her party, all of you, who want to come.
15 For me it'll be the first time I've ever
16 been to a hundred-year-old birthday party, but

17 nevertheless. Let's keep it professional, Alan.

18 As far as I can see it, the way Senate

19 Bill 90 is structured, the way it passed and has
20 been implemented, I don't see anything in there that
21 would prohibit her from voting.
22 Q Okay.
23 A Truth be known, she drives to the polling
24 place and votes in person.
25 Q Good for her.
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1 A Still driving in the daytime.

2 Q Supervisor Hays, as we are continuing to

3 talk about how voters return vote-by-mail ballots, I
4 want to -- well, strike that, please.

5 So your elderly mother goes to polls and

6 votes, like a lot of people. And when you go to the
7 polls and vote, there is 150-foot nonsolicitation

8 zone that applies. That's my understanding. Is

9 that your understanding as well, Supervisor Hays?

10 A Yes, sir.
11 Q And within that 150-foot nonsolicitation
12 zone, do you allow any dinteraction by third-party

13 groups, political parties, with the voters?

14 A No, sir.

15 MS. SIVALINGAM: Objection, asked and

16 answered.

17 BY MR. JAZIL:

18 Q And if someone wanted to get a bottle of
19 water while they're waiting in line, how would they
20 go about doing that? 1It's a hot day, they're
21 thirsty, they really need a drink. How would your
22 staff or anyone else help that person out and assist
23 them in line?
24 A My suggestion is that, number 1, the only
25 part of my staff that's going to be out there is the
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il poll deputy who is in charge of maintaining decorum
2 there inside that 150-foot mark and in the polling
3 place itself. And we don't make a habit of going
4 around asking people do you need water, do you need
5 food or anything like that.
6 Folks are welcome to bring their own
7 beverages with them if they'd like. But if there is
8 a party or any group or any individual that wants to
9 provide water or hot dogs or hamburgers or whatever
10 they want, you can set up a barbecue stand out there
Ll at 151 feet away from the door. You can set up a
12 beer tent if you want to 151 feet away from the
13 door.
14 Outside of that 150-foot mark, I don't
15 have any control. But inside the 150-foot =zone,
16 there's no solicitation, there's no appearance of
L7 solicitation. The only people allowed to interact
18 there are the voters themselves and, as I mentioned
19 earlier this morning or sometime in the day, exit
20 polling.
21 Q Okay. And so suppose someone is waiting
22 in line and they're elderly and they're having a
23 hard time just standing up in line. How would your
24 staff deal with that situation, sir?
25 A If we become aware of it, we would
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Q And in 20187?
A Sure.
Q And is that how you plan on administering
your elections in 20227
A Sure.
Q Okay. Supervisor Hays, I'd like to turn

your attention to an exhibit that I have and I'd
like to ask a few questions about it. This is the
file titled "REUSPSOIG recovered ballots."

A Do I have that?

Q You should. Or I could just share screen.

Did that work out all right for you last time I did

it, sir?
A Worked out fine.
Q Okay. If you wouldn't mind just taking a

minute, Supervisor Hays, to take a look at this.
This is an e-mail from March 2021 regarding a U.S.
postal service investigation and I'll scroll down so
you see the first e-mail in the chain.

And if I scroll down some more, sir, to
the last page, your name is there -- misspelled, my
apologies, but it's misspelled. And this e-mail
references certain recovered unopened ballots in
Illinois. Do you recall what this investigation was

about, Supervisor Hays?
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1 A No, sir.

2 Q Has the U.S. Postal Service contacted you
3 at all about these unopened ballots that were sent
4 to Illinois?

5 A Not that I recall.

6 Q Okay.

7 MR. JAZIL: Can we mark this as 13 (sic.)
8 (Exhibit 14 was marked for

9 identification.)

10 BY MR. JAZIL:

11 Q And, Supervisor Hays, I wanted to ask you
12 about it because I don't know what that

13 investigation is about and I figured I'd ask since I
14 had a chance.

15 Sir,“I'd like to talk a bit more about

16 drop boxes aow. It's an issue that's been the

17 subject of a lot of questions here and I've got a
18 few of my own.

19 Exhibit 3 is the picture of the drop box
20 that y'all have, the 24-hour drop box? Do you --
21 A Right.
22 Q Okay. So -- yeah, go ahead, Supervisor
23 Hays?
24 A It's the white one, not the blue one?
25 Q Yes, sir, the white one.
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1 A Okay.
2 Q And I'm just a little confused about the
3 drop box conversation in general. Based on your
4 testimony from earlier today, it sounded like your
5 county has been using drop boxes since at least
6 2017. 1Is that correct?
7 A I believe the first time we used it was in
8 2018, because, see, I came into office in January of
9 2017 and we didn't move over here into this building
10 where we are now until 2018.
11 And there again, I would have to go back
12 and look at the record, but my best recollection is
13 in 2018 for the primary election we were in this
14 building and thati.was the first time that we used
15 the drop box out there. And it was famously
16 successful
17 Q Okay. And was that a 24-hour drop box in
18 2018 as well, sir?
19 A Yes, sir.
20 Q And in 2018, did the drop box have the
21 three camera video monitoring set that you
22 described?
23 A Yes, sir.
24 Q And was the drop box shaped the same way
25 with the 1lid, as you described it, to make it
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1l difficult to put liquids in?

2 A Yes, sir, there have been no structural

3 alterations to that drop box since the day it first
4 went out there.

5 Q And, Supervisor Hays, I know you're pretty
6 active with the state association. Do you know

7 whether other supervisors of elections have a

8 similar drop box design to limit liquids?

9 A Yes, sir, they do. And when I say it's

10 similar, we have to emphasize gimilar, not

il identical.
12 Q Okay.

13 A But there are multiple designs that have
14 been used very successfully in several other

15 counties around -- as a matter of fact, I copied my
16 design from St. Johns County.

L7 And Citrus County just recently, last

18 year, moved into a former bank building and their

19 drop box was built in when the building was
20 constructed. It was a night depository for the
21 bank. And now that -- even that box has to be
22 manned by an employee of the office if it's going to
23 be in compliance with Senate Bill 90, which is now
24 state law.
25 But short answer to your question, yes,
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il Mo, there's a lot of -- there are -- there's

2 several, anyhow, other offices that use the drop

3 boxes successfully.

23 BY MR. JAZIL:
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1 perspective. So I am asking these questions and I
2 do appreciate your perspective on them. And ...
3 A Well, let me point out, Mo, that every --
4 literally every single U.S. Postal Service drop box
5 I've ever seen, you could drop a cherry bomb in,
6 much less a firecracker. So what's your point?
7 Q Sure. Sure. And that's worth exploring,
8 Supervisor Hays.
9 Is it your understanding that the
10 mailboxes that we have for the U.S. Postal Service
11 have mail other than ballots in them?
il A Well, that's a known fact.
13 Q Okay. And your drop boxes, do they have
14 anything other thaa ballots in them?
15 A I don't recall getting anything other than
16 elections related information. We have had some
17 people put their voter registration applications in
18 there. But it came there because it was supposed to
19 come to us, you know.
20 But I'm not aware of any, shall we say
21 malicious mail or any goopy mail that -- now, we
22 have had -- crazy thing. We have had people drop
23 their return envelopes in there that were destined
24 for Orange County instead of Lake County, but they
25 were ballots nevertheless.
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But the

8 cherry bombs as I remember are about yay big around

9 and I don't think one would fit in that narrow slit.
10  BY MR. JAZIL: OOQ
A

L

www.phippsreporting.com
(888) 811-3408



Case 4:21-cv-00186-MW-MAF Document 549-2 Filed 02/05/22 Page 208 of 316

Alan Hays

October 06, 2021

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 207
A It would be speculative.
Q Okay. And --
A One thing about it, you would be on
camera, though.
Q I would be on camera, but my understanding

of your testimony is if I come with the passenger's
side facing the drop box, you wouldn't get my
license plate, would you?

A That's right.

Q All right.

A I'd see your bald head, though.

Q I'll wear a hat, Supervisor Hays.

But let me explore that some more. So in
2020, my understanding is y'all had a contract
security guard ‘waiting out there looking at the drop
box, the 24~hour drop box, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q And correct me if I'm wrong, my
understanding of your testimony earlier today is
that you don't feel comfortable using a contract
security guard because you don't consider that
contract security guard an employee of the
supervisors of elections office. Is my
understanding correct, sir?

A That's correct.
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1 Q If you had some comfort that that contract
2 security guard is an employee of the supervisors of
3 elections office, would you consider keeping the

4 24/7 drop box as it is with the security guard

5 outside?

6 MS. SIVALINGAM: Objection to form.

7 A You know, that would be purely a fiscal

8 decision. I would have to look at it to decide, you
9 know, at probably $18 an hour for 24 hours a day,

10 I'm not that good at math in the head, but

11 nevertheless it's a big chunk of money. And I

12 just -- frankly, I think it would be a poor

13 utilization of taxpayer dollars.

14 BY MR. JAZIL:

15 Q If you could make the money work, would

16 you do it?

17 MS. SIVALINGAM: Objection to form.

18 A No, I'm sorry, Mo. That one I can't

19 answer because if you could make the money work?
20 How are you going to make it work? Somebody going
21 to slip it in my back pocket? Are you going to
22 sweet talk the county commissioners into giving me
23 more money?
24 I'm sorry, that one, I think, is too
25 vague.
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BY MR. JAZIL:

Q I understand. Supervisor Hays, I'd like
to turn your attention to a document titled "Request
for production number 6," the drop off process your
office provided. And I will share my screen so that
you can see it with me.

Sir, do you recall this --

A Yes, sir.

Q It's titled "Vote-by-mail drop off

process." 1Is this a process ycur office follows?
A Yes, sir. We originated it as far as I
recall.
Q Yes, sir.

MR. JAZIL: Sandi, could we go ahead and
mark this“as the next numbered exhibit, 14.
(Discussion off the record.)
MR. JAZIL: So the prior one is 14, this
is 15.
(Exhibit 15 was marked for
identification.)
BY MR. JAZIL:
Q So, Supervisor Hays, here we have got a
drop off process that your office, as you just said,
originated. And this process requires among other

things that an election worker verify that the

www.phippsreporting.com
(888) 811-3408




Case 4:21-cv-00186-MW-MAF Document 549-2 Filed 02/05/22 Page 211 of 316

Alan Hays
October 06, 2021
D=Defendants
offer Hays Ex : ; g Page 210
15 (Tri 1 vote-by-mail ballot is sealed, an election worker
rial Ex.
183) mot for 2 verify that the back of the envelope has a
the truth of
the matter 3 signature. Do you see those two provisions, sir?
asserted by the
policy, but 4 A Sure.
only for the
existence of 3 [ § Q And is this the policy that your office
policy;
Supervisor Hays | @ follows?
testified based
on has personal | 7 A Absolutely.
knowledge that
the policy was 8 Q And does this policy require there to be
followed.
9 an actual human being there to ensure that the
Alternatively
it is a record 10 envelope is sealed and the enwvelope has a signature?
kept and
the course of |a . .
regularly 12 Q Sir, have your constituents commented at
conducted ¢ ; .
activity of a 13 all to you about your staff ensuring that their
business, . q
organization, 14 envelope is sealed or that the envelope has a
occupation, ox g 5
calling under __ = Crociane
FRE 803 (6) . 16 A None of them have commented, that I'm
17 aware of, to me on those specific things. I have
18 had several favorable comments about the overall
19 chain of custody beginning right there at the drop
20 box. I don't recall any negative feedback that we
21 have gotten from this process.
22 But if I may go a little bit further, you
23 see what all is involved here. This is in the early
24 voting site or here in our office. And for me to
25 expect a contract security guard to be out there at
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1 11:30 at night or 4:30 in the morning doing this
2 sort of stuff is preposterous.
3 And so that would be a huge negative, to
4 answer your previous question about if money were no
5 object, my paraphrasing of your question. No, we're
6 not -- I just don't -- I just don't foresee parking
7 an employee of my office or a rent-a-cop out there
8 to do this kind of detailed paperwork.
9 Q Okay. But this process that you have,
10 Supervisor Hays, how does this align with the four
11 goals that y'all have? Does this help voter
12 confidence, does this promote excellent service
13 or -- can you ...
14 A Yes, six. It helps in every way.
15 Q Okay. And help me understand how this
16 promotes voter confidence?
171 A Well, they realize, as I mentioned earlier
18 today, when they come up, they know that somebody is
19 there keeping an eye on that box. It's not just a
20 naked box sitting out there and different people can
21 come plop different things in it.
22 And we explain to them that the chain of
23 custody for this -- your ballot begins right here
24 with the completion of this data. And so we fill
25 out those forms there, and then we tell them that
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19 Q Okay. So when I say after business hours,
20 I meant that to be after 5:00 p.m. Is that your
2N understanding of after business hours as well?

22 A Yes, sir.
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20 Q Okay. And my understanding of your

21 testimony with my friends earlier today was of the
22 people who are using that 24/7 drop box, you could
23 not speculate as to how many would choose to use
24 other drop boxes around the county. Is my

25 understanding correct, sir?
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1 A I'm not sure that I recall a question even
2 of that type, but to give you a straight answer,
3 I've never given it any thought. If people bring it
4 here, they bring it here. If they want to take it
5 somewhere else, they take it there.
6 I mean, I got important things to do. I
7 don't sit around and try to figure out people's
8 motives in doing stuff that is within the law. I
9 don't even try to figure out why they do it outside
10 the law. It's worthless to me. I try to devote my
11 energy to things that are productive.
12 Q Sure. So you don't know how many people
13 who use that 24/7 drop box would use other drop
14 boxes in the county?
15 MR. NASSERI: Object to form.
16 A Cha, I don't know.
17 BY MR. JAZIL:
18 Q Okay.
19 A I mean, one could say, gracious sakes,
20 every one of them could be put in a postal service
21 drop box; we could just do away with all our drop
22 boxes completely.
23 But, no, I'm sorry. That one there is out
24 of the ballpark, I think.
25 Q Fair enough. Supervisor Hays, I'm going
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1 to share with you two other exhibits that I have.

2 Okay. Supervisor Hays, take a minute to

3 look at this e-mail that you sent on Thursday,

4 September 10th, 2020.

5 A Right.

6 Q To Maria Matthews?

7 A Right.

8 Q You asked her a drop box question in that
9 e-mail, is that correct?

10 A Yes, sir.
11 Q Okay.

12 A And shame on me, I put a period instead of
13 a question mark. "Are we allowed to place drop

14 boxes at sites suitable for early voting before

15 early voting begins."

16 Q Yes.

17 A "Possibility being considered is to begin
18 drop box access on October 1lst while early voting

19 begins October 19."
20 MR. JAZIL: So, Sandi, can we go ahead and
21 mark this as next exhibit.
22 (Exhibit 16 was marked for
23 identification.)
24 BY MR. JAZIL:
25 Q Do you recall sending that e-mail,
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1 Supervisor Hays, to Maria Matthews?

2 A Sure.

3 Q Let's take a look at the next exhibit.

4 This is an e-mail that you sent September 16th to

5 Brad McVay?

6 A Yeah.

7 Q And if we scroll down we see a series of

8 questions related to drop boxes on page 2, is that

9 correct, sir?

10 A Yes, sir.

11 MR. JAZIL: And, Sandi, can we go ahead

12 and mark this as the next sequential exhibit.
13 BY MR. JAZIL:

14 Q So, Supervisor Hays, here's my question:
15 You mentioned earlier in your testimony that you got
16 some guidance from Brad McVay about drop boxes

17 before the 2020 election. In that guidance did Brad
18 McVay attempt to answer the questions that you and
19 other supervisors posed about drop boxes?
20 A As I recall, Mr. McVay sent us -- to all
21 supervisors -- a -- for lack of a better word --
22 directive or legal opinion -- I don't know what the
23 fancy word for it would be. But anyway, he sent us
24 a notification that the drop boxes had to be
25 monitored by employees of our office. And that was
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the extent of it.

The -- you see, my objective in proposing
that we use sites that were suitable for early
voting such as city halls, fire stations, police
departments, other government buildings, libraries,
things like that, that statutes allow us to put
early voting sites in those.

But yet here, I had this drop box out
front for access to the voters and the drop box in
my business office here was accessible to the voters
before early voting began.  And I was looking for a
way to expand that to the rest of the county. And
my efforts fell into-the creek. That's a country
saying we have out” here in hinterlands.

But. Brad says, no, you got to have
employees and this and that and the other. I guess
you probably have Brad's reply to us as well that
you probably wanted to enter as an exhibit.

Q I'll let Brad's reply speak for itself. I
just wanted to see whether or not Brad answered your
questions in his memo and ...

MR. JAZIL: Supervisor Hays, I think I may

be done. If we can take just a five-minute

break and I'll confer with Mr. Meros here, make

sure I haven't missed something, maybe we can
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1 come back then and I'll end with a gquestion or
2 two and we'll be done from our perspective. If
3 you could just take a five-minute break.

4 (A recess took place from 4:27 p.m. to

5 4:35 p.m.)

6 BY MR. JAZIL:

7 Q Okay. Supervisor Hays, earlier today you
8 testified that there are so many convenient ways to
9 vote in Florida that there is absolutely no reason
10 for someone to fail to register or vote in the

11 state. Do you recall that testimony, sir?

IR A I do.

13 Q Does that still hold true after passage of
14 Senate Bill 90°?

15 A Yes, sir.

16 MR. JAZIL: I have no further questions.
17 Mr. Meros.

18 MR. MEROS: Supervisor, George Meros. And
19 it's better than my image isn't there anyway.
20 I have one question which is a statement
21 rather than a question and that is: I win the
22 award for speaking to you without any questions
23 at all and I am quiet and done and have a good
24 evening.
25 THE WITNESS: Thank you, Mr. Meros.
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1 And, Mo, you get a half a point for
2 putting him on for that as well.
3 (Discussion off record.)
4 MR. BARDOS: All right. So Danielle and
5 Cyrus had a few more questions and then I think
6 we'll be just about done, unless Mo or George
7 has a final follow-up.
8 THE WITNESS: All right. Lay it on me.
9 Who goes first?
10 REDIRECT EXAMINATION
11 BY MS. SIVALINGAM:
12 Q I'll go first. And I certainly am not
13 winning any awards in that, in the category that
14 George is today.
15 A You get the award for the most, honey.
16 Q I“know. Okay, well, I'll take that. But
17 I only have one question.
18 A Okay.
19 Q Earlier today you discussed a situation
20 where someone working for a third-party voter
21 registration organization, Florida First, was
22 alleged to have submitted several fraudulent voter
23 registration applications.
24 To your knowledge, were any ballots
25 improperly voted as a result of the alleged voter
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1 registration fraud that you described?
2 A No, ma'am.
3 MS. SIVALINGAM: Thank you. No further
4 questions from me. And I do thank you for your
5 time today.
6 THE WITNESS: Glad to do it.
7 RECROSS EXAMINATION
8 BY MR. NASSERI:
9 Q Okay, Supervisor Hays, I have about one
10 and a half minutes worth of questions, so bear with
11 me. I am going to quickly screen share something.
12 Okay.
13 (Discussion off record.).
14 BY MR. NASSERT:
15 Q I'm going to share this. Can you see
16 this, Supervisor Hays?
17 A Yes, I can.
18 MR. NASSERI: Okay. And, Sandi, I'd like
19 to enter this as exhibit number I believe is it
20 around 16 now?
21 THE STENOGRAPHER: I believe we're 17.
22 (Exhibit 17 was marked identification.)
23 BY MR. NASSERTI:
24 Q Okay. So this is a text message, I
25 believe. Does this look familiar to you at all?
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il A It sure does.

2 Q Okay. And do you recall who you -- first

3 of all, did you send this text message?

4 A If I didn't send that identical one, I

5 certainly sent one very similar. I do think that's

6 the one I probably sent to Senate President Wilton

¥ Simpson.

8 Q Okay.

9 A Now, I may have sent that to two or three
10 others legislators as well. It certainly expresses
il my sentiments precisely.

12 Q Okay. So the last sentence here you say,
13 "Elimination of these is grossly inconvenient for
14 many hundreds of wvoters." Can you expand on what
15 "these" refers to?

16 A Qf course. "These" refer to the drop

L7 boxes under video surveillance.

18 Q Okay. And do you stand by this statement
19 that it would be "grossly inconvenient for many

20 hundreds of voters" to eliminate those?

21 A Absolutely.

22 Q Okay. And I believe you said earlier that
23 one of your -- the things that you aspire to is

24 having essentially -- you know, ideally would be

25 everyone voting in your county, is that correct?
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l A Yes, sir.

2 Q And do you think making voting grossly

3 inconvenient for hundreds of voters works in

4 furtherance of that goal?

5 MR. JAZIL: Object to form.

6 A I don't think that the elimination of the
¥ video surveillance of drop boxes helps anybody.

8 BY MR. NASSERT:

9 Q And do you think it's possible that

10 people -- voters might be disccuraged from voting if
11 voting is not convenient?

12 MR. JAZIL: Object to form.

13 A I don't --0I don't pretend to deal in the
14 possible or the impossible. The sad truth is many
15 people choose 1ot to vote and they have multiple

16 reasons for“doing so.

17 And as I've stated earlier today, it would
18 be my desire that every eligible citizen registers
19 and then takes the time to become an informed voter
20 and then conveys those informed decisions on their
21 ballot.
22 BY MR. NASSERT:
23 Q Right. But I guess just among the
24 conversations and communications you've had with
25 people in your county, is convenience a factor in
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1 whether people choose to vote or not?

2 MR. JAZIL: Object to form.

3 A Cyrus, I'm sorry, but I can't get inside
4 the head of the voters.

5 BY MR. NASSERT:

6 Q Okay.

7 A We have -- we have polling places that are
8 a hundred yards from somebody's front door and they
9 won't walk that hundred yards to go and vote on

10 election day, or even on early voting. We have --
11 the list could go on for the next two or three

12 hours.

13 Q No, I understand that. Okay.

14 MR. NASSERI: Well, no further questions
15 from me. <“Thank you, Supervisor Hays, I really
16 appreciate you bearing with us on this long

17 day. That's all for me.

18 MR. BARDOS: Thank you, Cyrus. Anybody
19 else? Was that George?
20 MR. MEROS: Yeah.
21 MR. BARDOS: Would you like to make
22 another statement?
23 Okay. All right. I think that's a wrap.
24 Thanks, everybody. We will read.
25 (Proceedings concluded at 4:44 p.m.)
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STATE OF FLORIDA )
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ALAN HAYS remotely appeared before me on October 6,

2021 and was duly sworn.

SIGNED AND SEALED this 12th day of

October, 2021.

ool Wy

SANDRA L. NARGIZ, RPR, RMR, CRR, CCR
snargiz@comcast.net

Commission #GG172788
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1 CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
2 STATE OF FLORIDA )
3 COUNTY OF LEON )
4 I, SANDRA L. NARGIZ, Registered
5 Professional Reporter, certify that I was authorized
6 to and did stenographically report the deposition of
7 ALAN HAYS; that a review of the transcript was
8 requested, and that the foregoing transcript, pages
9 1 through 223, is a true record of my stenographic
10 notes.
11 I further certify-that I am not a
12 relative, employee, attorney or counsel of any of
13 the parties, nor am I'a relative or employee of any
14 of the parties' attorney or counsel connected with
15 the action, nor am I financially interested in the
16 action.
17 DATED this 12th day of October, 2021.
18
19 .7{ o
- 4
2o eiihs w77
21 SANDRA L. NARGIZ, RPR, RMR, CRR, CRC
Notary Public
22 snargiz@comcast.net
23
24
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1
October 12, 2021
2
ALAN HAYS
3 c/o ANDRE V. BARDOS, ESQUIRE
andy .bardos@gray-robinson.com
4
5 RE: League of Women Voters, et al., vs.
Secretary Lee, et al.
6 Case No. 4:21 cv 186-MW/MAF
7 Dear Supervisor Hays:
8 Please take notice that on October 6, 2021, you gave
your deposition in the above cause. At that time
9 you did not waive your signature.
10 The above-addressed attorney has ordered a copy of
the transcript and will make‘arrangements with you
11 to read their copy. Please execute the Errata
Sheet, which can be foundiat the back of the
12 transcript, and have it - returned to us at
production@phippsrepoxting.com for distribution to
13 all parties.
14 If you do not read and sign the transcript within
thirty (30) days, the original, which has already
15 been forwarded<to the ordering attorney, may be
filed with the Clerk of the Court.
16
If you wieh to waive your signature now, please sign
17 your name to the blank at the bottom of this letter
and return to the address listed below.
18
Very truly yours,
19
20 Sandra L. Nargiz, RPR, CMR, CRR
Phipps Reporting, Inc.
21 1551 Forum Place, Suite 200-E
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
22
I do hereby waive my signature.
23
24 ALAN HAYS
Job No. 210346
25
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In Re: League of Women Voters, et al., vs. Secretary
Lee, et al.
Case No.: 4:21 cv 186-MW/MAF
ALAN HAYS
October 6, 2021

PAGE LINE CHANGE REASON

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have
read the foregoing transcript of my deposition and I
hereby swear that my testimony therein was true at
the time it was given and is now true and correct,
including any corrections and/or amendments listed
above.
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Job No. 210346
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URL

https://www.clickorlando.com/news/local/2020/10/05/central-florida-counties-reporting-record-number-of-mail-in-ballots-this-election/

Timestamp
Mon Oct 04 202110:38:20 GMT-0500 (Central Daylight Time)
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URL

https://www.clickorlando.com/news/local/2020/10/05/central-florida-counties-reporting-record-number-of-mail-in-ballots-this-election/

Timestamp
Mon Oct 04 202110:38:20 GMT-0500 (Central Daylight Time)
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Mon Oct 04 202110:38:20 GMT-0500 (Central Daylight Time)



Case 4:21-cv-00186-MW-MAF Document 549-2 Filed 02/05/22 Page 293 of 316

URL

https://www.clickorlando.com/news/local/2020/10/05/central-florida-counties-reporting-record-number-of-mail-in-ballots-this-election/

Timestamp
Mon Oct 04 202110:38:20 GMT-0500 (Central Daylight Time)



Case 4:21-cv-00186-MW-MAF Document 549-2 Filed 02/05/22 Page 294 of 316

URL

https://www.clickorlando.com/news/local/2020/10/05/central-florida-counties-reporting-record-number-of-mail-in-ballots-this-election/
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Sent time: 05/27/2021 10:12:08 AM

To: Carol Dunaway <carol@jacksoncountysoe.org>

Subject: Re: SB 90 Compliance For The Convenience of our Voters
Carol,

At this time, you are correct except we pay return postage so our voters don’t need to bother.
I’m hoping to get the postmaster to have their pickup people leave the ballots here with us instead of running them through the center. I have not made that request yet but
hopefully she will be in her “election service” frame of mind as we near the election this will consent.

Get Outlook for i0S A. HAYS

From: Carol Dunaway <carol@jacksoncountysoe.org>
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2021 10:07:18 AM E h H b 't 5
To: Hays, Alan <alan@lakevotes.com> x I I

Subject: Re: SB 90 Compliance For The Convenience of our Voters S. Nargiz 10/6/21

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of your organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Alan,

Good Morning. Quick question about your new blue box. It’s genuinely a USPS box in which ballots and all other types of mail can be deposited - all requiring postage. The
mail will be retrieved by the USPS and taken to a processing center and then ultimately delivered back to your office.

Is that correct? If not— what’s your arrangement with the USPS?
Thanks so much,
Carol Dunaway

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Hays, Alan <alan@lakevotes.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2021 8:54:44 PM

To: Aletris Farnam <vote@voteglades.com>; Amanda Seyfang <amanda_seyfang@bradfordcountyfl.gov>; Biil Keen <info@sumterelections.org>; Bobby Beasley
<bbeasley@votewalton.com>; Brenda Hoots <supervisor@hendryelections.org>; Carol Dunaway <carol@jzacksoncountysoe.org>; Carol Rudd <crudd@wcsoe.org>; Charles
Overturf <charles.overturf@putnam-fl.com>; Chris Anderson <anderson@voteseminole.org>; Chris Chambless <cchambless@clayelections.com>; Chris Milton
<chris.milton@bakercountyfl.org>; Christina White <christina.white@miamidade.gov>; Connie Sancihez <elections@gilchrist.fl.us>; Craig Latimer <clatimer@hcsoe.org>;
Dana Southerland <taylorelections@gtcom.net>; David Ramba <david@rambaconsulting.com>; Bavid Stafford <dstafford @escambiavotes.com>; Deborah Osborne
<debbie.osborne@unionflvotes.com>; Diane Smith <diane@hardeecountyelections.com>; Gerirude Walker <gertrude@slcelections.com>; Grant Conyers
<vote@libertyelections.com>; Heath Driggers <hdriggers@votemadison.com>; Heather Riley.<heather@votefranklin.com>; Janet Adkins <jadkins@votenassau.com>;
Jennifer Edwards <jennifer.edwards@colliervotes.gov>; Jennifer Kinsey <jkinsey@suwarineevotes.com>; Joe Scott <jscott@browardsoe.org>; John Hanlon
<jhanlon@votegulf.com>; Joseph (Joe) R. Morgan <jmorgan@wakullaelection.com>; {cyce Griffin <info@keys-elections.org>; Julie Marcus <jmarcus@votepinellas.com>;
Katie Lenhart <klenhart@flaglerelections.com>; Kim Barton <kbarton@alachuacounty.us>; Laura Hutto <lhutto@hamiltonvotes.com>; Leslie Swan
<Iswan@voteindianriver.com>; Lisa Lewis <llewis@volusia.org>; Lori Edwards <ioriedwards@polkelections.com>; Lori Scott <LScott@votebrevard.com>; Mark Anderson
<baysuper@bayvotes.org>; Mark Earley <earlym@Ileoncountyfl.gov>; Mark Negley <mnegley@votedesoto.com>; Marty Bishop <soe@jeffersoncountyfl.gov>; Melissa
Arnold <melissa@voteokeechobee.com>; Mike Hogan <mhogan@coj.net>; Paul Lux <plux@co.okaloosa.fl.us>; Paul Stamoulis <paulstamoulis@charlottevotes.com>;
Penny Ogg <pogg@votehighlands.com>; Ron Turner <rturner@sarasotavotes.com>; Sharon Chason <schason@votecalhoun.com>; Shirley Anderson
<shirley.anderson@hernandovotes.com>; Shirley Knight <shirleykright@gadsdensoe.com>; Starlet Cannon <dixiecountysoe@bellsouth.net>; Tammy Jones
<tammy@votelevy.com>; Tappie Villane <villane@santarosa.fl.gcv>; Therisa Meadows <therisa@holmeselections.com>; Tomi S. Brown <election@votecolumbia.com>;
Tommy Doyle <tdoyle@lee.vote>; Travis Hart <lafayettesoe@gmail.com>; Vicki Davis <vdavis@martinvotes.com>; Vicky Oakes <voakes@votesjc.com>; Wendy Link
<wendylink@pbcelections.org>; Bill Cowles <bill@ocfelectic.ns.com>; Mary Jane Arrington <maryjane@voteosceola.com>; Mike Bennett <mike@votemanatee.com>; Ron
Labasky (rlabasky@bplawfirm.net) <rlabasky@bplawfirm.net>; Wesley Wilcox <wwilcox@votemarion.com>

Subject: Fw: SB 90 Compliance For The Convenience0f cur Voters

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content
is safe.

From: Hays, Alan <alan@Ilakevotes.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2021 9:53 PM

To: Brian E. Corley <bcorley@pascovotes.com>

Subject: Re: SB 90 Compliance For The Convenience of our Voters

My election workers won't have anything to do with this box, it is a USPS box!!

Not to be monitored by me, not to be opened by me, nothing more than a convenience for my voters who have become accustomed over the last 5 elections to
bringing their VBM's to be dropped into the box in our parking lot.

Thanks to the so-called wisdom of our stellar legislature, those voters will now have to use the USPS box instead of our private box. UGH!!! | just hope USPS gets
the ballots to us promptly.

From: Brian E. Corley <bcorley@pascovotes.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2021 9:43 PM

To: Hays, Alan <alan@lakevotes.com>

Cc: Amanda Seyfang <amanda_seyfang@bradfordcountyfl.gov>; Bobby Beasley <BBeasley@votewalton.com>; Bill Cowles <bill@ocfelections.com>; Brenda Hoots
<supervisor@hendryelections.org>; Carol A. Dunaway <carol@jacksoncountysoe.org>; Chris Anderson <anderson@voteseminole.org>; Chris Chambless
<CChambless@clayelections.com>; Chris Milton <chris.milton@bakercountyfl.org>; Christina White <christina.white@miamidade.gov>; Connie Sanchez
<elections@gilchrist.fl.us>; Craig Latimer <clatimer@hcsoe.org>; Carol Rudd <crudd@wcsoe.org>; Dana Southerland <taylorelections@gtcom.net>; David Ramba
<david@rambaconsulting.com>; David Stafford <dstafford @escambiavotes.com>; Diane Smith <diane@hardeecountyelections.com>; Mark Earley
<earlym@leoncountyfl.gov>; Gertrude Walker <gertrude@slcelections.com>; Grant Conyers <vote@libertyelections.com>; Heath Driggers <hdriggers@votemadison.com>;
Heather Riley <heather@votefranklin.com>; Joyce Griffin <info@keys-elections.org>; Bill Keen <info@sumterelections.org>; Janet Adkins <jadkins@votenassau.com>;
Jennifer Edwards <jennifer.edwards@colliervotes.gov>; Jennifer Kinsey <jkinsey@suwanneevotes.com>; Joe Scott <jscott@browardsoe.org>; John Hanlon
<jhanlon@votegulf.com>; Joseph (Joe) R. Morgan <jmorgan@wakullaelection.com>; Kim Barton <kbarton@alachuacounty.us>; Katie Lenhart
<klenhart@flaglerelections.com>; Laura Hutto <lhutto@hamiltonvotes.com>; Lisa Lewis <llewis@volusia.org>; Lori Edwards <loriedwards@polkelections.com>; Lori Scott
<Iscott@votebrevard.com>; Leslie Swan <Iswan@voteindianriver.com>; Julie Marcus <jmarcus@votepinellas.com>; Mark Anderson <baysuper@bayvotes.org>; Marty
Bishop <Soe@jeffersoncountyfl.gov>; Mary Jane Arrington <maryjane@voteosceola.com>; Maureen Baird <MBaird@votecitrus.gov>; Melissa Arnold
<melissa@voteokeechobee.com>; Mike Bennett <mike@votemanatee.com>; Mike Hogan <mhogan@coj.net>; Mark Negley <mnegley@votedesoto.com>; Paul Lux



<plux@ GIBBE4 121 P00 S BMWNAFore a8 cutrrreint Bekehedovofll@eh ORfO5I2R R ovRageR9Ge0f8d.Gam-
fl.com>; Ron Labasky (rlabasky@bplawfirm.net) <rlabasky@bplawfirm.net>; Ron Turner <rturner@sarasotavotes.com>; Sharon Chason <schason@votecalhoun.com>;
Shirley Anderson <shirley.anderson@hernandovotes.com>; Shirley Knight <shirleyknight@gadsdensoe.com>; Starlet Cannon <dixiecountysoe@bellsouth.net>; Tammy
Jones <tammy@votelevy.com>; Tommy Doyle <tdoyle@|ee.vote>; Therisa Meadows <therisa@holmeselections.com>; Tomi S. Brown <election@votecolumbia.com>;
Travis Hart <lafayettesoe@gmail.com>; Deborah Osborne <debbie.osborne@unionflvotes.com>; Vicki Davis <vdavis@martinvotes.com>; Vicky Oakes
<voakes@votesjc.com>; Tappie Villane <villane@santarosa.fl.gov>; Aletris Farnam <vote@voteglades.com>; Wendy Link <wendylink@pbcelections.org>; Wesley Wilcox
<wwilcox@votemarion.com>

Subject: Re: SB 90 Compliance For The Convenience of our Voters

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of your organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nice!
Just be sure one of your early voting workers doesn't have a bathroom emergency. .. could be an expensive potty trip ... Just a mere $25,000 fine to you my friend

Regards,

Brian Corley, MPA

Supervisor of Elections

Pasco County

“Repeat a lie often enough and it becomes the truth” Joseph Goebbels

On May 26, 2021, at 9:07 PM, Hays, Alan <alan@lakevotes.com> wrote:

OUTSIDE EMAIL: Take caution with links or attachments.

Colleagues,
The voters of Lake County will now have the convenience of dropping off their VBM ballots right in front of our office while our office is in compliance
with SB 90! Thanks to the cooperation of our wonderful USPS Postmaster, we now have a USPS drop bgx if our front parking lot.

While we don't have to staff it, it is located at the same place our earlier, more secure, box was located. Therefore we have continued to have the
new box monitored by all three cameras.

We shall endeavor to continue to serve the needs of our voters is the best way possiblewiiie complying with the law.

All the best,
Alan
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Committee on Governmental Oversight and Accountability

Senator Stewart Thank you. I don’t know whether to call you Senator
Hays or Commissioner. Either one I'm sure will do. I
would like to know and I know you read through this
bill and every word is there any suggestions you would
have that would improve our election performance.

Chairman Y ou are recognized

Supervisor Hays Thank you Senator Stewart that’s an excellent
question. Our association of supervisors has
submitted 10 priorities that we are making suggestions
proactive suggestions to improve the voting process.

I can read them if you’d like Mr. Chairman orI can
just let you ... we can havetliem sent to everyone by
email which ever it would be your preference.

Chairman Senator Stewart do you have preference?

Senator Stewart Well, I dor’t know who hasreceived these. I don’t
know if the bill sponsor has seen them or received
themi."I know I have not so I am curious because there
niay very well be improvements that are needed for a
better election performance. ButI’'m not certain that
this bill takes care of it in fact seems like, I’'m not sure
what it seems like but I'd like to know what you feel.

Supervisor Hays Senator Stewart perhaps I might clarify. AsI just
stated that nothing in this bill is on our list of
suggestions with the exception of that one section
giving us the authorization to begin canvassing to vote
by mail ballot after the logic and accuracy testing is
completed. That’s the only thing that we are in favor
of in this bill.

Chairman Seeing no further questions. Senator Torres you are
recognized.

A. HAYS

1 Exhibit 7

S. Nargiz 10/6/21
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Senator Torres Former Senator Hays this is Senator Torres. My
question is on the drop boxes would you say 90% of
the drop boxes or more are secured in secure
locations?

Supervisor Hays Senator Torres the rule promulgated by the division of
elections requires every dropbox in the State of Florida
to be monitored. To the best of my knowledge that
rule was followed to the letter in this past election.
There have been all sorts of allegations about this or
that or the other but I have yet to see anybody who can
give us concrete evidence that that rule was violated. I
know what happened in Lake County and here’s
another question sir, who’s going to monitor the US
Postal Service boxes? You know I'm sorry but there’s
a dichotomy here that I personally cannot deal with,
you’re not gonna pay for a cop to stand at the Post
Office box areyou? You are going to disallow the use
of the Postal Service and require those ballots to be
returned to us? I think not. Ithink this bill needs a lot
of work.

Senator Torres I have one more question. The question I have Mr.
Hays s are there other on those lockboxes or the
dropboxes rather, do we have other uses for that like
dropping off registration forms or sometimes
candidates can drop off some of their forms. Do you
know if that’s being used as well in those dropboxes?

Supervisor Hays I don’t know I'm sure the ones that are manned are
not done that way but we have tax collectors that have
dropboxes in their offices similar to dropboxes that
banks use for night depositories. And tax collectors
actually brought mail ballots to our office that were
dropped in their dropbox. Just like the post office
brings us ballots that were dropped in their dropboxes.
So, they bring all sorts of things like that that are put
in the tax collectors boxes and the mail boxes.

Senator Torres Follow up Sir.
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Chairman We're going to do one more. We have a lot of people
who want to speak Senator Torres and then we’re
going to leave this alone.

Senator Torres But you would say that let’s say a tax collector would
have somebody filling out a register form could drop it
off in the dropbox. Am I correct?

Supervisor Hays Senator Torres, we have no control over the American
public and they put all sorts of things in those boxes.
The voter registration application can be done online,
it can be brought in and hand delivered to our office, it
can also be mailed to us and yes, some people take that
voter restoration application and drop it in the tax
collectors dropbox and they turn around and bring it
to our office. That’s just the way lifeis out there in the
real world.

Chairman I'll just ask one question. I heardyou mention the vote
by mail procedure and your concerns with the Post
Office. Do you have any evidence that the Postal
Service in Lake Countyhas not delivered your ballots
or has misdirected ycur ballots?

Supervisor Hays No Sir.
Chairman Are you promoting vote by mail?
Supervisor Hays But I can assure you that not one of their dropboxes,

theirPost Office dropboxes is manned by any security
personnel in any form at all.

Chairman Have you ever heard of a US postal security dropbox in
Lake County being burglarized, vandalized or stolen?

Supervisor Hays No sir.

Chairman Thank you sir. I appreciate your time. Thank you for
your testimony.

Next we're moving to Mark Early who is the Leon
County Supervisor of Elections
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Good Morning Chair Rodrigues and members,

| must comment it is quite different to testify from the civic center
instead of from the podium when | was presenting bills a few short
years ago.

Thank you for the time to speak this morning on this PCS for SB 90.

The accolades each of you have heard from our Governor and our
Secretary of State relating to the outstanding administration of the
2020 elections are absolutely true. Those elections were superbly
accomplished under extremely complicated conditions. Those elections
were very transparent and efficient. We election professionals of
Florida are deservedly proud of the job done byeveryone including the
voters.

Mr. Chairman, if | were seeking to remadel my home, | would seek the
services and opinions of an architect and a building contractor, | would
not ask a dentist how to do the remodel.

Sir, now in my role as the Elections Supervisor of Lake County, | am
asking each member of the legislature to seek the opinions and take
the advice of the elections professionals of the State of Florida before
making significant changes to our statutes.

Please take a walk with me through the PCS. Page 5, line 138 restricts
the pickup of a VBM to an immediate family member. Do you have any
idea how many people like my mother don’t have immediate family
members living near them thus aren’t able to have their ballot picked
up? Current law allows the voter to “designate in writing a person to
pick up the ballot for the elector.” Please leave current language as the
law.

A. HAYS

Exhibit 11

S. Nargiz 10/6/21
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Page 9, line 241 is good policy and we appreciate the Governor’s
previous order enabling this improvement and now this proposal
codifies that good policy.

Page 11, line 309 begins a travesty. All of us are aware of the perils,
perceived or actual, of trusting the USPS to deliver ballots on time. Last
year in the general election, 4.4 million Floridians returned their VBM
for tabulation. Of those 4.4 million, 1.5 million were placed in drop
boxes. If you allow section 5 of this PCS to stand as it is currently
worded, you have outlawed the use of drop boxes, and you have just
played havoc on 1.5 million Floridians not to mention the added burden
on the Supervisors of Elections. Is that really yourintention?!

Now for page 12, line 336, Section 7.....

The true estimated statewide cost of this'one section is $14-16 million
dollars. Meeting the requirements stated in Section 1 of this PCS
necessitates sending the informatioin to us in a manner other than a
postcard. This section will reguire us supervisors to mail the 6 million
voters who received VBM baliots last year, to let them know their
request currently valid through 2022, has been invalidated by this
legislature. If they want a VBM for the 2022 election, they must now go
through another, more involved process to request a VBM. Do you
really wish incur or impose on the counties, this expense and alienate 6
million voters?!!

Thank you for your time and I’'m happy to answer any questions you
may have.
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Sent time: 04/30/2021 08:15:29 AM
To: Vicki Davis <vdavis@martinvotes.com>
Subject: Re: LEGISLATIVE REPORT Final Edition for this session ( I expect!!)

Thanks Vicki. Rep. Snyder calling you is a great sign the contact program is working as designed. He considers you his
subject matter expert thus he called you for guidance!! Yea!!

We shall work next session to help all the legislators understand how disingenuous and lame it is to deny use of video
monitoring of drop boxes while allowing voters to use the USPS drop boxes that have no monitoring whatsoever. In the
meantime, I'm encouraging each SOE to deliver that message to the legislators as they come in contact with them.

| appreciate you,
Alan

From: Vicki Davis <vdavis@martinvotes.com>

Sent: Friday, April 30, 2021 8:06 AM

To: Hays, Alan <alan@lakevotes.com>

Subject: RE: LEGISLATIVE REPORT Final Edition for this session ( | expect!!)

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of your organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and
know the content is safe.

One of my reps called me yesterday (Rep. John Snyder) wanting to know if SOE’s supported the bill, this was prior to SB90
coming back late afternoon. John is a freshman legislator and didn’t know how to respaiid to me when | told him SOE’s did not
support the bill, which included the ID requirements. He had been asked to debate the bill on the floor on behalf of the
Republican legislators. Thank goodness Senator Simpson agreed to take out the ID-requirements!

Thank you, Alan, for all of your efforts and use of your knowledge of the legisiative process having served in both chambers.

Have a restful weekend,
Vicki

Vicki Davis, CERA, MFCEP
Martin County Supervisor of Elections

772-288-5637 office
772-288-5765fax
www.MartinVotes.com

Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released in response to a public records request, do
not send electronic mail to this enfity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing.

From: Hays, Alan <alan@Iakevotes.com>

Sent: Friday, April 30, 2021 7:57 AM

To: Vicki Davis <vdavis@martinvotes.com>; Mark Earley <Mark.Earley@I|eonvotes.gov>; Wesley Wilcox
<WWilcox@votemarion.gov>; Paul Lux <plux@co.okaloosa.fl.us>; rturner@sarasotavotes.com;
clatimer@votehillsborough.gov; David Ramba <david@rambaconsulting.com>

Subject: Re: LEGISLATIVE REPORT Final Edition for this session ( | expect!!) A. HAYS
Thanks Vicki. I’'m quite proud of the effort each of our members put into this challenge. E h . b.t 1 2
Get Outlook for iOS S. Nargiz 10/6/21

From: Vicki Davis <vdavis@martinvotes.com >

Sent: Friday, April 30, 2021 7:24:10 AM

To: Hays, Alan <alan@lakevotes.com >; Mark Earley <Mark.Earley@leonvotes.gov>; Wesley Wilcox
<WWilcox@votemarion.gov>; Paul Lux <plux@co.okaloosa.fl.us >; rturner@sarasotavotes.com <rturner@sarasotavotes.com>;
clatimer@votehillsborough.gov <clatimer@votehillsborough.gov >; David Ramba <david@rambaconsulting.com>

Subject: RE: LEGISLATIVE REPORT Final Edition for this session ( | expect!!)

|CAUTION: This email originated from outside of your organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender
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Good Morning Alan, David and Team,

Many, many thanks for all of your efforts throughout this legislative session. What started out as very restrictive and
concerning bills is now much more manageable from an administrative level and also for our voters due to your investment of
time and dedication to the process.

| appreciate each of you and your leadership throughout this tumultuous session.

Sine die,
Vicki

Vicki Davis, CERA, MFCEP
Martin County Supervisor of Elections

772-288-5637 office
772-288-5765fax
www.MartinVotes.com

Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released in response to a public records request, do
not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing.

From: Hays, Alan <alan@lakevotes.com >

Sent: Thursday, April 29, 2021 9:56 PM

To: Amanda Seyfang <amanda_seyfang@bradfordcountyfl.gov>; Bobby Beasley <bbeasley@votewalton.com >; Bill Cowles
<bill@ocfelections.com >; Brenda Hoots <supervisor@hendryelections.srg >; Brian Corley <bcorley@pascovotes.com>; Carol A.
Dunaway <carol@jacksoncountysoe.org>; Chris Anderson <anderson;voteseminole.org >; Chris Chambless
<cchambless@clayelections.com >; Chris Milton <chris.milton@baiercountyfl.org>; Christina White
<christina.white@miamidade.gov >; Connie Sanchez <elections@gilchrist.fl.us >; Craig Latimer <clatimer@hcsoe.org>; Carol
Rudd <crudd@wcsoe.org>; Dana Southerland <taylorelecticiis@gtcom.net >; David Ramba <david@rambaconsulting.com>;
David Stafford <dstafford@escambiavotes.com>; Diane Smith <diane@hardeecountyelections.com >; Mark Earley
<earlym@leoncountyfl.gov >; Gertrude Walker <gertrune@slcelections.com >; Grant Conyers <vote@libertyelections.com >;
Heath Driggers <hdriggers@votemadison.com >; Heather Riley <heather@votefranklin.com >; Joyce Griffin <info@keys-
elections.org>; Bill Keen <info@sumterelections:org >; Janet Adkins <jadkins@votenassau.com >; Jennifer Edwards
<jennifer.edwards@colliervotes.gov >; JenniferKinsey < jkinsey@suwanneevotes.com >; Joe Scott <jscott@browardsoe.org>;
John Hanlon <jhanlon@votegulf.com >; Jeseph (Joe) R. Morgan <jmorgan@mywakulla.com>; Kim Barton
<kbarton@alachuacounty.us>; Katie Lenhart <klenhart@flaglerelections.com >; Laura Hutto dhutto@hamiltonvotes.com >; Lisa
Lewis <llewis@volusia.org >; Lori Edwards doriedwards@polkelections.com >; Lori Scott <.Scott@votebrevard.com>; Leslie
Swan <Iswan@voteindianriver.com >; Julie Marcus <jmarcus@votepinellas.com >; Mark Anderson <baysuper@bayvotes.org>;
Marty Bishop <soe@jeffersoncountyfl.gov >; Mary Jane Arrington <maryjane@voteosceola.com>; Maureen Baird
<mbaird@votecitrus.gov>; Melissa Arnold <melissa@voteokeechobee.com >; Mike Bennett <mike@votemanatee.com >; Mike
Hogan <mhogan@coj.net>; Mark Negley <mnegley@votedesoto.com >; Paul Lux <plux@co.okaloosa.fl.us >; Paul Stamoulis
<paulstamoulis@charlottevotes.com >; Penny Ogg <pogg@votehighlands.com>; Charles Overturf <charles.overturf@putnam-
fl.com>; Ron Labasky (rlabasky@bplawfirm.net ) <rlabasky@bplawfirm.net >; Ron Turner <rturner@sarasotavotes.com>; Sharon
Chason <schason@votecalhoun.com>; Shirley Anderson <shirley.anderson@hernandovotes.com >; Shirley Knight
<shirleyknight@gadsdensoe.com >; Starlet Cannon <dixiecountysoe@bellsouth.net >; Tammy Jones tammy@votelevy.com>;
Tommy Doyle <tdoyle@lee.vote >; Therisa Meadows <therisa@holmeselections.com >; Tomi S. Brown
<election@votecolumbia.com >; Travis Hart <lafayettesoe@gmail.com >; Deborah Osborne
<debbie.osborne@unionflvotes.com >; Vicki Davis <vdavis@martinvotes.com>; Vicky Oakes <voakes@votesjc.com>; Tappie
Villane <yvillane@santarosa.fl.gov >; Aletris Farnam <vote @voteglades.com >; Wendy Link <wendylink@pbcelections.org >;
Wesley Wilcox <wwilcox@votemarion.com>

Subject: LEGISLATIVE REPORT Final Edition for this session ( | expect!!)

First, the good news..... AHUGE THANK YOU to David Ramba, Craig Latimer, Paul Lux for riding the roller coaster
of these last 3 days!! Holy Cow, what a ride it has been. Mark Earley, Wesley Wilcox, and Ron Turner were right there
for us as well. No team has ever tried with more effort than those guys and honestly,we did pretty darn good. With the
help of many of you, we took what began as a real stink-pot of a bill that became much worse, then we were able to
finally get it to a tolerable level. No, it isn't a clear victory for us, but when last did we have a legislative bill that we
liked every aspect of it? We shall live to fight another day and for now let us be thankful the legislators did listen to us
on most things.
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ability of any of us alone!! Thanks David!!!

| so deeply appreciate each of you who contacted your legislators. Several of you were in touch with Daivd, Craig, or me
trying to determine what can be done nextand that effort was quite effective and appreciated by us all.

SB 90 did pass tonight shortly after 9 and is on its way to the Governor. | have attached to this email the final language
passed by the Senate then by the House.
You can read it and see the changes we will need to make.

David and | will have a report at the summer meeting and at that time we will have a synopsis of the changes for
distribution. One glaring change is except for the drop boxes in our offices, drop boxes now must be monitored by living
people, at all times, and are to be available only during Early Voting hours of operation. We are NOT allowed to have
them monitored by video only. Another issue we weren't fully successful on was the acceptance of private money.
We are specifically able to accept donated spaces for polling places though.

As you will see we were successful in eliminating the horrific provision requiring those depositing ballots into drop
boxes to provide ID. That was a huge victory for us!!

Since next year's session begins in January, perhaps we will be able to convince the legislature they need to revise the
restrictions on drop box use.

| am going to sign off for now but again, a huge thank you for a group victory!!!

All the best,
Alan
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Attorney-Client Communication

A. HAYS
From: Hays, Alan e
Sent: Sunday, February 21, 2021 10:41 PM EXhlblt 1 3
To: stephanie.kopelousos@eog.myflorida.com S. Nargiz 10/6/21

Subject: Comments from Alan Hays

Hello Stephanie,

In light of the press release last Friday having to do with elections, | offer the following thoughts. 1 am not
speaking officially for the FSE Association, | am speaking only as Alan Hays, Supervisor of Elections of Lake
County, Florida. If I may, please allow me some general comments first, then | will be specific to each bullet
point of the release.

| agree with the Governor's comments relating to the fine administration of the 2020 elections. | am confident
the Governor's executive order was significant in providing us the flexibility to adapt to the unusual
circumstances in which we found ourselves operating. We appreciate very much, his leadership! The
executive order played a very essential role in allowing the voting centers in Bay and Gulf Counties. That same
order was very helpful in guiding the legislature to put into statute the authority to begin canvassing vote by
mail ballots 22 days before the election day. The elections professionals of Florida administered all three of
the 2020 elections in a very efficient and accurate manner and all Floridians are proud of that fete.

It is my thought that anyone proposing changes to the Florida Election Code must consider the vast
differences of the various sized counties in Florida. Many of our counties have fewer than 10,000 registered
voters and processes that work in large counties simply will not work in the smaller counties. Those
differences require flexibility in statute to allow those Supervisors of Elections in each county to customize

1




Case 4:21-cv-00186-MW-MAF Document 549-2 Filed 02/05/22 Page 308 of 316

their processes to meet the needs of their citizens. | readily recognize we must have statutory constraints in
order to maintain the integrity and uniformity of the election and at the same time allow flexibility. An
example of that need relates to the use of drop boxes in Madison County which is completely different from
the use of drop boxes in Pinellas County. There are many other examples but | won't bore you with too many.

The FSE Association has provided a list of priorities for this legislative session. Please use that list because it
comes from the election professionals of Florida, it is well thought out, and it has been discussed at length by
the Association. | am sure the Association is willing to work with the Governor's office and the legislature to
craft modifications deemed as improvements. The current statutes worked quite well in 2020 so let's take
that into consideration as we go forward.

| have taken the liberty to provide comments to each bullet point in the release. My comments are in bold
print below. Please encourage your team and the legislators to seek input from the Association before making
significant changes to the current statutes. The Association members are the election professionals who take
great pride in administering fair and accurate elections in a very efficient manner. They want to be able to
continue this high level of performance.

| truly appreciate your time considering this very important subject!! Here are my comments:

Ballot Integrity

. Address the use of ballot drop boxes. Monitoring is a
good idea but.remember USPS is not
monitored. cit will be especially helpful to
allow drcp box placement in other
governmental offices with
monitoring. PLEASE allow these drop
boxes to be available only during regular
hours of operation of that office. Don't
require them to be open same hours as EV
hours. Another thing to consider is
requiring each ballot placed into the drop
box to be logged in on a log book. This
will be the first step in the chain of
custody for that ballot and can be
accomplished by the person monitoring
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the box. I did this for the 2020 general at
each EV site. Of course we don't do that
at the USPS drop boxes but neither do we
monitor those boxes to prevent deposits

of multiple ballots by harvesters.
o Address ballot harvesting so that no person may possess ballots

other than their own and their immediate family. Yes! Put
meaningful penalties on it. However, there
needs to be some limited accomodation
as in current statute or this action may
prohibit non-family members from
dropping off ballots for seniors or
handicapped people who can't or don't
wish to go to the drop box. The current
limit is 2 ballots other than your own or

that of an immediate family member.
« No mass mailing of vote-by-mail ballots—only voters who request a

ballot should recéive a ballot. YS! Keep current
statute.

« Vote-by-mail requests must be made each election year. We
can live with this even though it creates
more work. It really should be worded
"must be made each even numbered year"
because many counties have municipal
elections every year. | am one of those
counties! The proposal of voiding those
VBM requests currently on file is quite
expensive ($6-8 Million) and will create a
host of angry voters at the last
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minute. This is in SB 90, Section

3. Please let those requests on file stand.
« Vote by mail ballot signatures must match the most recent signature

onfile. This is may be good but due to
changing signatures it can create many
more cures. Our current system allows us
to scroll through previous signatues to
see if one of them matches the

envelope. People sign their names from
different posture positions plus those
signatures coming from DMV license
offices often are poor maiches. Thus if
the DMV signature is tiie latest one, the
chances of matching the envelope
signature are not'good. If you REALLY
want to tighten it down, require voters
desiring VBM to send a signed request
with a cory of their photo ID with
signature on it, to us every even numbered
year. That way we will have a current
signature and the photo ID at the same
time. The signature on the request can
then be compared to the ID signature
before mailing the ballot so we know it is a
valid request. This is a rabbit hole we
likely don't wish to travel in!!

Transparency in the Elections Process
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« Political parties and candidates cannot be shut out from observing
the signature matching process. If "observe" is
defined as being allowed to view the
process through windows, this may
work. Otherwise it will create
chaos!! BAD IDEA!! We dare not set up
the public as judges of validity of
signatures!! They haven't been trained,
they are partisan, and the only way this
should be thought of is to hire handwriting
experts for each county. -YWe dare not
allow the public into our secure spaces
and that's what it waiild take. Are you
proposing to allow the public to stand
over the shoulder of my operators? NOT
going to happen without huge
objectionsi!! If you want the public to be
able to look into the room through a
window, ok, but that's really impractical
due to the physical limitations of the
various office structures across the
state. It will also set us up to criticism
because the public will be too far away to
really see for comparison (second
guessing) the signatures. I'm not aware of
any real objections to how this worked in
2020 so why tinker with it?

e Supervisors of Elections must post over-vote ballots to be
considered by the canvassing board on their website before the
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o Requires real-time reporting of voter turnout data at the precinct
level. This will necessitate purchase of

electronic poll books by some counties
since not all of them currently have

them. | expect the instruments are $2,500
each PLUS annual fees that are not cheap
either. Fiscally constrained counties can't

afford this mandate.

e Supervisors of Elections must report how many ballots have been
requested, how many have been received, and how many are left to

be counted. This is worded too generally to be
clear, but my first reaction is totally
negative. What we do now is just

fine. Why do you want to add more steps
in the middle of @ time of high stress
already? Whein do you expect this report
to be made™ If it is during the election day
activities, forget it, we are too busy. Ifitis
after the election, we do that already. If
you. are speaking only of VBM's not
tabulated by 7:00 PM on election night, a
system for that can be devised. Every
ballot that is used currently is accounted
for. Allow me to explain: We inventory
the number of sheets of paper sent with
each ballot on demand printer used in

EV. We then compare the count of voters
checked in with the number of ballots
tabulated plus the number of voided or
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spoiled ballots at that site each day. The
chain of custody follows those ballots
back to our office each day. For VBM, we
know daily how many are mailed, how
many are returned, how many have
signature issues, how many have been
tabulated, so those who feel a need to
know can do the math. As for ED ballots,
each precinct submits a reports detailing
each ballot issued, spoiled, and

tabulated. The ballots are counted in the
precincts then the results are transmitted
back to our office that evening. My
thought is this idea came from seeing the
states that didn't'begin counting VBM until
election day. Our canvassing VBM begins
early enoughi for us to usually be
completely finished by 7:00 PM on election
night. Only if we are blasted with a huge
numier of returned VBM ballots on the
last day or two will you see a backlog of
ballots waiting to be tabulated. IF that
backlog does occur, as | stated earlier, we
can devise a report for that occurance.
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- -Mail Drop Off Process

1) Voter enters Early Voting location to drop off Vote-by-Mail ballot.
2) Election Worker will take possession of Vote-by-Mail ballot.

)

)
3) Verify that the Vote-by-Mail envelope is sealed.
4) Verify the back of the envelope has a signature.
)

9) Election Worker must log the voter's name, date and time on Vote-By-
Mail Custody Log.

6) Election Worker will place Vote-by-Mail Hallot into secure drop box.

7) At end of day, Election Worker will.fiil out Vote-by-Mail Custody Slip
and give to Clerk.

8) Election Worker and Clerk-open VBM Ballot Box and collect VBM
Ballots, placing them iri-Blue Transport Bag then seal bag.

9) Clerk gives Blue Transport Bag (including custody log, slip and ballots)
to Zone Courier at drop off location.

Vote-By-Mail Custody S

Vote-By-Mail Custody Log A. HAYS

Exhibit 15

S. Nargiz 10/6/21
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Does no one realize or care how stupid it looks to outlaw video surveillance of the Dropbox in front of the
SOE offices when no USPS dropboxes are monitored whatsoever?!!!
Elimination of these is grossly inconvenient for many hundreds of voters.

A. HAYS

Exhibit 17

S. Nargiz 10/6/21
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Craig Latinmer
Cctober 11, 2021
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Page 147
A | don't have that nunber off the top of ny

head.
Q Ckay. You have a lot of themright off
the top of your head?

A | believe we may have answered that in
interrogatories, | don't know though.
Q | can check that. Do you think that the

activities of third-party voter registration
organi zations to register voters is inmportant for
voters?

A | think it's certainly another avenue to
gi ve peopl e an opportunity to register, yes.

Q Do you thipnk that third-party registration
organi zati ons m ght reach voters who woul d ot herw se
not register to vote?

A I““coul dn't answer that.

Q Do you have any sense of what types of
voters use the services of third-party voter
regi stration organi zations?

A | don't know.

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408
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Craig Latinmer
Cctober 11, 2021

Page 148

I“

11 Q | think you nmentioned that you have

12  received sone questionscor comments about the --
13  about SB 90 restrictions on third-party voter

14 registration organizations, is that right?

15 A Yes..

16 Q  \Wat were the substance of some of those
17 commentsor questions, to the best of your

18 recollection?

19 A What are the changes, what do we have to
20 do now?

21 Q Okay. They are asking about how to

22 conply?

23 A Yes.

24 Q | think you said that you directed themto
25 the state departnent?

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408
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Craig Latiner
Cctober 11, 2021

. ) . Page 149
A Di vision of Elections website, they have
got an entire section on there.
Q Ckay. | amquite near the end of this. |

appreci ate your bearing with ne and pl ow ng through

a BB W N

this segment.

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408
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Craig Latiner
Cctober 11, 2021

Page 150

12 M5. MADDURI: ~Do you mind if we take a

13 five-mnute break for me to just | ook back over
14 ny notes and see if |'m done?

15 MR _TODD: That's fine. Thank you.

16 M. Cavataro, are you next?

17 MR. CAVATARO. Yes, | am up.

18 MR. TODD: How nmuch do you think you have
19 in ternms of tinme, roughly?

20 MR CAVATARO | will aimto wap up under
21 an hour, perhaps well under, but | will give
22 nysel f sone room and say an hour.

23 MR. TODD: M. Budhu, | think you had sone
24 questi ons?

25 MR, BUDHU. Yeah, | will be well under an

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408
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Craig Latiner
Oct ober 11, 2021
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Page 151
hour as wel | .

MR TODD: There was sonebody el se, but |
can't recall who it was that wanted to question
the witness. Maybe | amincorrect. So | guess
that's it.

(A recess took place from2:50 p.m to
3:00 p.m)

M5. MADDURI: | amdone. | just want to
say thank you, Supervisor Latiner, for your
time.

THE W TNESS: Thank you very nuch, ma'am

CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR CAVATARQO

Q Good afternoon, Supervisor Latinmner.

A Good“aft er noon.

Q Thank you for being with us today. M
name i s B8en Cavataro, and | represent the Florida
conference of NAACP, Common Cause, and Disability
Rights Florida in this case.

You understand, of course, you are still

under oat h?

A | do.

Q All the ground rules that M. Zacherl and
M. Daines and Ms. Madduri went over, they stil
apply here.

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408
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Craig Latiner
Oct ober 11, 2021
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. Page 152
And if | say SB 90, of course, you

understand it to nmean Senate Bill 90 and then any of
t he conpanion bills, including House Bill 70417

A | do.

Q We al ready discussed Hil |l sborough County
and your role in the Supervisor's Ofice and your
history of public service. | just wanted to go over
one nore thing. Hillsborough County is the fourth
| argest county in Florida, is that right?

A By voters. Actually; we have a higher
popul ati on than Pal m Beach-County, but Pal m Beach
County has nore voters tnan we do.

Q So it's the'third I argest by popul ation
and the fourth | argest by regi stered voter
popul ati on?

A Yes, by registered voters.

Q Is it fair to say that Hillsborough is a
di verse county in ternms of ethnicity and race?

A Absol utely.

Q And is it fair to say that the nunber of
regi stered voters in the county is also diverse by
ethnicity and race?

A Yes.

Q And is it fair to say that the

Hi I | sborough County voter base, the voter group is

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408
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diverse in terns of people with disabilities?

A Yes.

Q Geat. And only because | don't think we
covered it earlier, howlong is each termas a
county supervisor of elections?

A Four vyears.

Q And because you were el ected in 2020,
woul d that make your current termextend out to
January of 20257

A That is correct.

Q You testified eariier about the role of
your office in voter education. Do you consider
I ncreasing voter turinout to be a goal of your
of fice?

A We certainly -- ny goal is that we have
everyone that's eligible to be registered to vote
is, in fact, registered and all the registered
voters have an opportunity to cast that ballot.

Q | want to talk a little bit about FSE, the
Fl ori da Supervisors of Election Association. You

testified earlier that it was a bipartisan group.

Wuld it also be fair to call it nonpartisan?
A Yes.
Q If | pause, it's because | amtrying to

spare you repeated questions.

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408
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A That's fi ne.

Q As a general matter, do you think it's
i nportant that voters have nultiple options in terns
of the nethod to cast their ballot?

A Absol utely.

Q Wiy is that?

A Vell, | think the sinple explanation is
t hat sone people m ght not have transportation, so
they can vote by mail; sonme peopl e have
transportation but have different work hours and
t hey have the opportunity to early vote; and then,
of course, election day, which | always say is the
| ast day to vote, not ‘the first day, for people that
want to vote on election day.

And. ¥ want all three methods of voting and
peopl e across those three nethods of voting because
| don't ‘want |ines.

Q Thank you. We discussed earlier about
vote-by-mail security and the different neasures
t hat have been taken. Wuld you agree -- strike
t hat .

Is it fair to say that there is |l ayered
security for vote by mail and that security doesn't
rely on any one thing?

A You have to be a little bit nore specific
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on that one.

Q Wul d you agree that for vote-by-nail
bal l ots, there is many different security nethods,
not just one?

A | think what | stated previously was that
to even get a vote-by-mail ballot, you first have to
be a registered voter. To be a registered voter,
you have to supply a driver's |icense nunber,
Florida I D, last four Social so the state can nmake a
mat ch on your information. Then you can becone a
voter, then you can request a vote-by-mail ballot.

You have to reguest that ballot, we send
it to you. Wen you-send it back, you also have to
sign the oath on_the back of the envel ope, and then
that signature<is physically conpared with the
si gnatures we have on file.

Q So the signature match and the voter
regi stration match are both security neasures that
pertain to vote by mail ?

A Yes.
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Q Is it right that you testified earlier
that vote-by-mail ballots can't be forwarded?

A That is correct.

Q Do you consider that to be a safety
feature, or a security feature, rather?

A Yes.

Q Thank you. | want tgo turn a bit to the
| egi sl ative process |eading up to the enactnent of
Senate Bill 90.

Am | correct that earlier you testified
that there were others involved in speaking to the
state | egislature about SB 90 ot her than the
super vi sors?

A Yes.

Q And who were those people, if you can
recal | ?

A | can't give you a nane right off the bat.
| remenber | watched several of the commttee
nmeetings and there were people there fromvarious
organi zati ons that spoke to the legislators, too.

Q Do you know if a group called the Heritage

Foundation or Heritage Action for Anerica was
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I nvol ved?

MR DAINES: Object to the form
A | have no direct know edge of that.
BY MR, CAVATARC

Q You testified-earlier that Senate Bill 90
was changed many tines throughout the |egislative
process, is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Ils it correct that there was a strike-all
anendment or multiple strike-all amendnents during
the consideration of the bill?

A As | renenber it, yes.

Q Woul d you consider Senate Bill 90 to have

been rushed through the | egislative process?

A | couldn't answer that.
Q Is it fair to say that nost of the
provi sions of Senate Bill 90 were not in response to

requests from supervisors of elections?
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MR. DAINES: (Cbject to the form
A That is fair to say.
BY MR CAVATARO
Q Coul d you repeat the answer?
A That is fair to say.
Q Thank you. | would like to call up an

exhibit, if you will bear with ne.
MR. CAVATARO M internet is not quite
cooperating. We'Ill just speak to it.
BY MR CAVATARC

Q Wul d you say that the |egislative process
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| eading up to the final bill took place over a very

conpressed tinme period?

A | woul dn't know how to conpare that.

Q | would Iike to talk very briefly about
drop boxes, trying to avoid redundancy to what you
di scussed with Ms. Madurri, but you wll forgive nme
if there is sonme overl ap.

Do out door drop boxes, in your opinion,
of fer any advantages over indoor drop boxes?

A As | stated, we actually noved them
outdoors as a safety precaution during COVID. So
that was the notivation. | know in our Fal kenburg
Road office, we woula'literally have hundreds and
hundr eds of people a day that would cone in here to
drop off their~ballots, so we noved all that
out si de.

Q So is it the case that public health woul d
be one advant age of outdoor versus indoor drop
boxes?

A That was exactly why we did this. But
then the feedback fromthe voters was great about |
just drove right up there and was able to drop it
of f.

Q Are drop boxes nore inportant to some

voters than others?
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A | think so.

Q And for which voters would drop boxes be
nost val uabl e or useful ?

A As | said before, people would remark to
me, | knowit's getting to your office today, | am
going to put it in the drop box.

Q And based on your discussions with the
ot her supervisors, are drop boxes nore inportant to
some counties than to other counties?

A | can't answer that.

Q Is Hi|lsborough County, as a |l arge county,
differently situated fromsone snmaller counties in
ternms of el ection adiinistration?

A You have'to be nore specific.

Q |s it nore challenging to adm nister an
election in“a large county than to a small county?

A | don't think so. Every county has to do
the sane thing, and it doesn't matter how big you
are, you got to do vote by mail, you got to do early
vote, you got to do election day. And we are all
bound by the sane statutes. The difference is in
t he econony of scale, how many enpl oyees you have
doing it.

Q Turning to the -- on drilling down a

little deeper on the drop boxes, you testified
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earlier, | think, there were 26 drop boxes at the

early voting sites and then four office drop boxes
after early voting hours, is that correct?

A Correct.

Q And then of the drop boxes at the early
voting sites, were those drive-up drop boxes?

A Yes, we had themoutside in drive-up areas
as long as weather was perm tting, obviously
wat ching lightening. And we have storns and in
August and even into Novenber,

Q So those drop boxes were contact free?

A Yes.

Q And again,cwas that for public health

reasons?
A Yes.
Q Xd voters -- did any voter remark to you

on contact-free voting and whether they favored or
di sfavored it?

A Not in those terns; the anecdotal exanples
| gave where people just tal ked about how easy it
was to drive up and didn't even have to get out of
their car.

Q Got it. Bear with me one second. | want
to tal k about 24-hour drop boxes which have been

touched on before. Are there advantages to 24-hour
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drop boxes versus drop boxes with nore limted
hour s?
A | think for certain voters that may

have -- they work 12-hour shifts, which would be the
sane as early voting and office hours, so they would
have the opportunity to drop them outside of regul ar
busi ness hours.

Q Are there any other groups of voters for
whom 24- hour drop boxes woul d be especially
i mportant ?

A | nsormi acs. | don’t know.

Q Wul d you say-voters with childcare
responsibilities mant find 24-hour drop boxes nore

useful than voters w thout such responsibilities?

A | woui d say anybody that --

MR DAINES: Object to form Sorry, sir,
go ‘ahead.
A | would say that anybody who's not able to

hit a drop box during the early voting hours outside
of that it would be beneficial to them
BY MR CAVATARQO

Q s it inportant, in your opinion, to
provide voters with a drop box to accept
vote-by-mail ballots prior to the beginning of the

early voting period?
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A Yes, and we do.

Q Wiy is that inportant?

A VWll, we send the ballots out 40 days
before the election, and people are literally
bringi ng them back the next day or two.

Q Does SB 90, in your understanding, allow
supervi sors to accept grant nonies to fund
el ection-rel ated activities?

A It does not anynore.

Q Does SB 90, in your understandi ng, bar
supervi sors from accepting grants of any kind?

A | am sorry, accepting what?

Q Accepting grants of any ki nd.

A Directly related to conducting the
el ection.

Q And that would include drop boxes,
correct?

A Specul ation, | don't know.

Q You testified earlier that the
Hi | | sborough County Supervisor's Ofice doesn't use
vol unteers or unpaid volunteers, is that correct?

A Correct.

Q Do you understand SB 90 to all ow you to
use unpaid volunteers if you wanted to?

A | don't know.
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Q |f the use of drop boxes is Ilimted, would

that particularly affect voters who don't own cars?
MR. DAINES: (Cbject to the form
A Limted in what way, sir?
BY MR CAVATARO
Q | f drop boxes becone |ess available in
terms of nunber or |ocation or hours.
A | don't understand the correl ation of just

because they don't have a car.

BY MR CAVATARQO

Q | want to talk a little bit about the U S
Postal Service mail boxes versus the drop boxes,
whi ch was discussed a little bit before, so | wll
try not to repeat prior questioning.

Do you ever have a concern that the U S.

Postal Service mght |ose vote-by-mail ballots that
are mailed by voters?

A | amsure that's always a possibility.
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Q Do you ever have a concern that the U S.

Postal Service mght deliver a ballot froma voter
after the deadline?

A That does occur. | think | stated
previously that that's what | was really |ooking at,
t he dates of when these ballots were postnmarked and
actually I ooking at the date they were signed by the
voter, the date they were postnmarked and t hen when
we received them And it was amazing -- | remenber
one particular one we received-two days after the
el ection, and it had been signed and dated the day
after the election. Socit only took one day, but it
was two days | ate.

Q | s your. understanding that U S. Postal
Service mail boxes are usually nonitored?

A I““don't have any know edge of that.

Q Are drop boxes established by your office
wthin your control nore than U S. Postal Service
mai | boxes?

A Are they nore what?

Q Pardon ne. Are drop boxes nore within
your control than USPS mail boxes?

A Absol utely. | don't staff USPS mail boxes.

Q | would Iike to talk briefly about the

vote-by-mail repeat request limtation that was
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di scussed bef ore.

Q Have you noticed, in the course of your
wor k as supervisor, any voting-groups that were
particularly apt to use vote by mail, standing
vot e-by-mai | requests?

A Can you restate that?

Q I n your. experience as supervisor of
el ections, do.you think that there are certain
voting groups that are nore likely to request to get
a vote-by-mail ballot in each el ection?

A | don't have any information on that.

Q Do you know why the Legislature included
in Senate Bill 90 the vote-by-mail repeat request
provi si on?

MR DAINES: Object to the form

A What is the repeat request provision?

BY MR CAVATARC

Q The imtation on the duration of a
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standi ng vote-by-nmai| ballot request.

A | do not.

Q You testified earlier that the
vote-by-mai | provision regarding the duration of
requests for vote-by-mail ballots poses an
adm ni strative burden for your office, is that
correct?

A Yes.

Q And is it correct that you testified that
cost is an aspect of the admhistrative burden?

A Yes.

Q Do you have ariy sense of how to quantify
t hat cost even roughiy?

A | think we answered that in the
interrogatories. W had sonme projections in there.

Q Are there other forns of admnistrative
burden c¢ither than a financial burden?

A Having to hire additional people to keep
up with the workl oad, additional tenporary
enpl oyees, that's going to increase our mailing, so
bot h ends.

Q s an increase in training an aspect of
the adm nistrative burden that this provision
I ncurs?

A Sure. W provide training to all our
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enpl oyees, whatever duties and responsibilities they

have.

Q Wth respect to the financial burden of
this provision, are there other prograns or
activities that you would prefer to spend the noney
on?

A Vell, | prefer not to spend taxpayer noney
on addi tional anyt hing.

Q During the debate in the |egislature
regarding the bill, did the supervisors of elections
express concern over this provision regarding
vot e- by-mai | requests?

A Let me remnd you, and | think we still
can do this, too,.the original part of the bill was
going to wipe out all requests on file, which was
huge. And we really didn't want it to go to one, we
wanted it to stay at two. And there was no logic to
do that, to take it to one.

Q Are you aware of any instance of voter
fraud that woul d have been prevented by this
provi sion that we've just been discussing?

MR TODD: nject to the form

A No, | am not aware.

BY MR. CAVATARO

Q In your view, prior to the enactnent of
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Senate Bill 90, were there sufficient safeguards in

pl ace to protect against vote-by-mail voter fraud?

A | think |I've stated al ready what the
process is.
Q | would like to touch on very briefly the

nonsolicitation provision of Senate Bill 90 rel ated
to the 150 feet. Do you understand the provision
that | amreferring to?

| do.

>

Q Sois it fair to say that not every
contact with a voter wwthin the 150-foot zone woul d

constitute solicitation?

A It woul d depend on the situation.
Q If all other things are equal, if it
becomes nore difficult to vote by mail, does that
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i ncrease the likelihood that people vote in person?

MR TODD: nject to the form

A | think that's an individual decision. W
saw a huge junp in vote by mail during COVID, and we
are having internal discussions nowis that going to
hol d up, or are people going to go back to voting in
person.
BY MR. CAVATARO

Q And returning a bit to the nonsolicitation
provision, if a nonpartisan volunteer provides a
bottle of water to a voter-on his or her way into
the polling place, is that prohibited solicitation?

A | would notput up with that because |
don't have any idea what that person is talking to
the voter about. And what | have told groups
already is. i don't care if you set up a tent and a
wat er station at 160 feet, they can get the bottle
on their way by.

Q Sois it fair to say there is an aspect of
j udgnment involved in enforcing the nonsolicitation
provi si on?

A Absol utely.

Q | want to turn briefly to third-party
bal | ot col | ecti on.

You testified earlier that you are aware
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anecdotal |y of voters asking neighbors to turn in

their vote-by-mail ballots for them is that
correct?

A Yep, very much aware.

Q And with apologies if this is redundant,
why did voters ask their neighbor to return the
ball ot for thenf

A Various reasons: Sick, didn't have
transportation, they were going, it nade it easy,
what ever.

Q O the voters that had others return
bal |l ots on their behalf, were sone of those voters
i ndividuals with disabilities?

A | can't answer that specifically.

Q O her than neighbors, did caretakers for
those withan illness or injury sonetines return
vot e-by-=imai | ballots on behalf of the person for
whom t hey were taking care of ?

A | have no direct know edge of that.

Q You nmentioned briefly earlier the
supervised facilities or the supervised voting
provision of Florida law. Do you understand the
provision to which | amreferring?

A Yes.

Q My understanding is that people who are
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eligible voters, who are registered to vote who live

in certain supervised facilities, are able to vote
at those facilities. |Is that -- does that reflect
your understanding as well?

A A vote-by-mail ballot, yes.

Q And do you know which facilities qualify
for the supervised voting provision of Florida | aw?

A It's in statute. | don't know it right
off the top of ny head.

Q Wul d assisted living facilities be
eligible?

A | believe so.

Q And woul d nursing facilities be eligible?

A | believe so.

Q But ot her forns of communal housing woul d
not be eligible, is that correct?

A | would have to refer back to the statute,
so | can't really answer that.

Q Do you know off the top of your head --
and | realize you may not -- whether hospitals are
sites where the supervised voting provision could
apply?

A | don't believe so.

Q And what about group homes, would they be

eligible for supervised voting?
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A Again, | would have to refer to the

statute.

MR CAVATARO - Can we go off the record
for about five ininutes while |I | ook over ny
notes? M. Todd, are you okay with that?
MR _TODD:  Fine.
(A recess took place from3:32 p.m to
3:35 p.m)
BY MR CAVATARO

Q | just placed in the Zoom chat function an
exhibit that is marked NAACP Latimer Deposition
Exhibit G

MR, CAVATARO  Sandi, | confess, | don't
know what nunber we're up on.

M5. MADDURI: | believe it's going to be
Exhibit 11.
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(Exhibit 11 was marked for

i dentification.)
BY MR. CAVATARO

Q Supervi sor Latinmer, are you able to open
that exhibit?

A Yes. | amlooking at it.

Q Do you recogni ze this docunent?

A Just refreshing nmy nmenory here, it |ooks
| i ke a chat between ne, Dave Ranba and Al an Hays.

Q Geat. Could you remnd us who M. Ranba
I s?

A He is our |obbyist, Dave Ranba.

Q By our | obiyist, you nean the Florida
Supervi sors of Elections Association?

A Yes, i amsorry, FSE s |obbyi st.

Q NG problem And then M. Hays is the Lake
County supervi sor of elections, is that correct?

A He is former senator, current Lake County
supervi sor of elections, and he's head of the
Legi sl ative Affairs Comm ttee.

Q Do you recall what tine this text nessage

conversation occurred?

A | do not.
Q Is it fair to say it occurred during the
| egi sl ative consideration of Senate Bill 90?
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A Yes.

Q Did you wite "Ingolia just said our check
box is no good"?

A | don't renenber witing that. And I
woul dn't have had any direct know edge of that, to
be truthful with you, so I would assune that was
either Alan or Ranba. | know it says Hill sborough
County SCE. But | don't recall saying that.

Q Do you see the part at the -- toward the
end where Supervisor Hays wites another way to neke
the VBM difficult?

A Yes.
Q Do you understand VBMto be vote by mail ?
A Yes.

Q And what's your understanding, if you have
an under st aindi ng, what Supervi sor Hays was trying to
convey?

A | think it goes back to the check box that
we have been tal king about, that this is a nethod
used by numerous supervisors of elections and that
it's an easy way to keep the people on the rolls, to
get a requester -- to keep them active for
requesting a vote-by-mail ballot.

Q And do you believe that at |east part of

the intent behind this provision of Senate Bill 90
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was to nake vote by mail nore difficult?
A | can't answer that.
Q Bear with nme about 30 seconds, | just want

to check to make sure | covered what | need to
cover.
A Yes, sir.
(Short pause.)
MR CAVATARO Al good here. Thank you,
Supervi sor Latinmer, for your tine.
MR TODD. M. Budhu;
MR BUDHU. Yep, ~yep, |'mon deck. Are we
on the record stilt?
THE STENOGRAPHER:  Yes.
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BUDHU.
Q (zcod afternoon, M. Latinmer, ny nane is
Ryan Budfiu, | aman attorney, | represent plaintiffs
Florida Ri sing Together in this action. |
understand that you have been questioned under oath
here today. A few of ny col |l eagues have given you

ground rules, you understand that those ground rules

are still in effect?

A | do.

Q Ckay. | think in ternms of questioning, |
won't be long. | do have a few areas | would |ike
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to give -- to ask you a few questions.

So turning straight to vote by nmail, and |
wanted to ask you, prior to enactnent of SB 90, in
your experience, were there sufficient election
protection procedures in place regarding vote by
mai | ?

A | believe so.

Q And based on your understanding, | believe
that you testified earlier today that you weren't
aware of any w despread voter fraud in Hillsborough
County during the 2020 el ection, correct?

A That is correct.

Q And you are not aware of any w despread
fraud in H Ilsborough County in any prior election,
correct?

A Since 2012, | can tell you that, no, | am
not aware, 2010, actually.

Q Got it. And | also believe you gave a
little bit of testinony here earlier today about the
procedure for requesting a vote-by-nail ballot,
correct?

A Yes.

Q And you kind of wal ked us through a little
bit about the docunentation that was necessary, is

that right?

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Case 4:21-cv-00186-MW-MAF Document 549-3 Filed 02/05/22 Page 179 of 272

Craig Latiner
Oct ober 11, 2021

© 00 N oo o b~ wWw N e

N N N N NN FP P P P P P P PPk
g A W N P O © 0 N O O A W N B O

Page 178
A Yes.

Q Just if you could just generally explain
how your office checks to nmake sure requests for a
vote-by-mail ballot is legitimte.

A Wll, as | stated previously, first off,
you have to be a registered voter. To be a
regi stered voter, you have to supply a Florida
driver's license, Florida ID card, |ast four of your
Social, and the State nmakes a match on that
information. The voter then has to request that
vote-by-mail ballot, so they ve got to be a
regi stered voter, then tney've got to request it.

Wien we get ‘that ball ot envel ope back,

they've had to sign the oath on the outside of the
envel ope and date it. And then we physically
conpare the’signature to the signature we have on
file towverify that it is, in fact, that voter.

Q Okay. Could you explain to nme how exactly
SB 90 changed the process for requesting a
vote-by-mail ballot?

A It's added an additional provision now
that to request a vote-by-mail ballot, you nust
I ncl ude your Florida driver's |icense nunber, your
Florida I D card nunber or the |ast four of your

Soci al .
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Q And you are aware that there are some

regi stered voters who don't have access to a
driver's license?

A Yes.

Q And there are Florida voters who don't
have access to an ID card, correct?

A Yes.

Q Wll, | amnot asking if that -- they do
or do not have a Social Security nunmber but that
t hey may not have access to their Social Security
nunber, is that right?

A I““don't have any know edge of that.

Q Ckay. Under SB 90, what's your
under st andi ng of what happens if a voter who wants a
vote-by-mail ballot doesn't have access to their
driver's license nunber, state identification nunber
or Social Security nunber?

A The way the lawis witten, it says we
have to be able to verify for those.

Q I n that scenari o above, can your office

send them a vote-by-mail ballot?
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But as you sit here right now, there's no

finalized procedure for those category of folks,

correct?
A

of fice.

do not have a finalized procedure in ny
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But | would chal | enge probably 90 percent of the
people on this call right now can't recite their
driver's license nunmber without [ooking at it.

Q Has your office or have you estimated the
cost of conplying with that identification nunber
mat ch provi sion of SB 907

A W have not.

Q As a result, is it currently funded in
your budget ?

A | am sorry,is what funded?

Q The cost of conplying with SB 90's
i dentification<nunber requirenment. | assune because
there is nog“finalized procedure, it wouldn't be
funded, ‘0or at least it wouldn't be reflected in your
budget, is that correct?

A It's not reflected in ny budget at this
poi nt .

Q Based on your experience, what inpact do
you think the SB 90 identification nunmber
requi rement will have on voters in your county?

A | don't know. W are going to have to

wait and see.
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1 Q Wl |, based on your experience, do ygﬁgelsz
2 have an anticipated inpact, do you have any type of
3 thoughts about what the inpact wll be?
4 A | don't. I think I kind of addressed this
5 earlier, that if sonebody contacts us and they give
6 us the last four of their Social and we don't have
7 that, we are going to talk them back to their
8 driver's license and they will have to furnish us
9 wth that so we can do the verification.
10 Q | amgoing to nove tg third-party voter
11 regi stration organi zations, I amjust going to cal
12 them 3PVRGs. You understand if | amreferring to
13 3PVRGs, | amreferriing to third-party voter
14  registration organizations?
15 A | do.
16 Q Fi1or to the enactnent of SB 90, did your
17 office receive registrations for 3PVROs for voters
18 outside your county?
19 A Yes.
20 Q How di d your office handle these types of
21 regi stration?
22 A W woul d have to input them and then they
23 would end up going to the county the person |ived
24  in,
25  Q Howdid that differ fromregistrations of
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15 Q And.what type of resources were needed to
16 process those registrations?

17 A W have to bring on tenporary enpl oyees,
18 train them go through the process.

19 Q Do you have a general sense of the nunber
20 of tenporary enployees that you have to bring on to
21 handl e these registrations?

22 A | don't have that information off the top
23 of ny head.

24 Q Do you have a sense of maybe the funding
25 or some of the nunbers in ternms of hiring those
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1 enployees to handl e these registrations?

A | don't.

N

15 Q But to the best of your know edge, there
16 are no ballots that were cast that were a result of
17 any fraud allegedly perpetuated by any 3PVRGs,

18 correct?

19 A That is correct.

20 Q And -- actually w thdrawn.

21 MR BUDHU:. If | could just have one

22 mnute off the record, | amjust going to see
23 if | have anything el se.

24 (Short pause.)

25
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MR BUDHU: M. Latiner, | have no further

questions for you. Thank you for your tine.
THE WTNESS: Thank you, sir.
MR ZACHERL: Stephen, this is Frank. Is
t here anybody el se that said they wanted to ask
questions before I do follow up?
MR TODD: | don't hear any. | do have a
fewfollow up, but I will let you go first.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ZACHERL:
Q | am going to be-real quick, Supervisor
Latimer, to try to finisn up.

The first thning | want to just follow up
on is the questioning earlier about the delays with
the U S. Post Ofice. Do you renenber those
guestions?

A | think so.
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Q Yes, sir. Yes, sir. Then | amgoing to
try something and this is going to be a big
experinent, so if | screwthis up, | apologize to
everyone, but | amgoing to try to share ny screen.

And if | can do this and | figure out how to do

it -- let's see if we can do this.
Hold on. You know, | can't do it, I'm
sorry. |I'mgoing to have to go into ny preferences

and fix this.

So | amjust going to ask you questions.
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One of the exhibits that you | ooked at earlier --

and | don't know the exhibit nunber, | apol ogize,
but it was the talking points for the 2021
| egi slation. Do you renenber that?

A | think there was two of them actually.

Q Yeah. And the one | want to ask you
about, | think you wll renmenber it, it's just there
was sone | anguage in there about the potential to
create voter confusion and the potential for there
to be an erosion of confidence-in the process. Do
you recall that?

A | do.

Q And real l yoimy question is very sinple,
woul d you agree with ne that, as we sit here today,
those are only potentialities, it's speculation as
to whet her_those two things that you nentioned w ||
actual l y-cone to pass, is that accurate?

MR. CAVATARO. (nject to the form

A | don't know. | have seen sonme polling
out there that's been done tal ki ng about erosion of
confi dence and whet her elections are secure and
stuff, so | don't knowthat | could totally agree
wth you.

BY MR. ZACHERL:

Q Wien you say the polling about elections
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bei ng secure, can you el aborate on what you nean by
t hat ?
A Yeah, that, for instance, vote by mail is
a secure process, especially in our state. | don't

probably need to sit here and give a history | esson
of what we have gone through the [ ast few nonths
with the different attacks on the election system

Q VWll -- but what | was getting to, though,
Is, if anything, the changes to the -- and the
changes in Senate Bill 90 would nake the voting
system nore secure and nore safe, wouldn't you
agree?

A How so?

Q Well, that's what | am asking you. |
mean, there is<nore specific verification
requi renents, there is nore i mmedi ate need to renew
vote-by-vmil registration. Don't those things,
al t hough they nmay cost nore noney for the
supervi sors of elections, don't those things
I ncrease the security of the elections?

A Vell, | don't know that | can agree with
that. As | stated previously, that to even get a
vote-by-mail ballot, you have got to be a registered
voter. And then we are actually verifying that

signature on the envel ope agai nst the signature we
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have on file, which the voter can al so track that

bal | ot back to ny office and see when it is approved
and counted and it's accepted and counted. There's
a lot of provisions that are in place already to
keep that safe and secure.

Q W nmay be saying the same thing. Let me
ask you differently.

Q Ckay. That'screally what | was getting
to. Then just one noire thing, sir, before | cut you
| oose at least for nme for today. | think you said
this earlier, but then | got alittle confused
about -- you said sonething about -- it deals wth
line warimng and it deals with giving out water and
f ood.
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13 MR. ZACHERL: | don't have any further
14 questions, sii. Thank you again for all your
15 tine today. | appreciate it.

16 MR TODD: M. Daines has sone questions.
17 MR DAINES. Yes, thank you.

18 RECROSS EXAM NATI ON

19 BY MR DAl NES:

20 Q Just this will be really quick.
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Right. And so just to nake sure | am
clear on your perspective on this, even with the
| ocation within the building and with security
caneras that were nonitoring it 24 hours a day,

seven days -- as many days as the box is avail abl e,

wWww. phi ppsreporting. com
(888) 811-3408




Case 4:21-cv-00186-MW-MAF Document 549-3 Filed 02/05/22 Page 193 of 272

Craig Latiner
Oct ober 11, 2021

© 00 N oo o b~ wWw N e

N N N N NN P P P P P PP PP
g N W N P O © 00 N O U0 M W N B O

. . Page 192
it would -- that the caneras and the |location wthin

t he buil ding woul d not prevent tanpering with the
bal | ots through, for exanple, pouring gasoline on
the ballots into the slot?

A Usi ng that sane exanple, just because |
had a | aw enforcenent officer inside nmy office at
2 o'clock in the norning, they wouldn't have had
time to respond out to keep that from happening
ei t her.

Q Ckay. Would you agree that having a
physi cal presence at the box would be nore likely to
prevent putting a foreign substance |ike
firecrackers or gasoiine in than the caneras by
t hensel ves?

A | think it's totally hypothetical. Like |
said, you could certainly have sonebody w thin
20 feet of the thing and not be able to stop
what ever the person's intentions were.

Q Ckay.

MR. DAINES: That is all the questions I
have. So thank you.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

MR TODD: Anyone else? | just have sone

brief follow up.
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CROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MR TODD:

Q Addressing this, M. Latiner, you' ve
candidly expressed sonme of your views regarding
Senate Bill 90 and its inpact. | would like to take
a nmoment to talk about the issue of voter confidence
in Hllsborough County, followng up with
M. Zacherl's questioning. Gkay?

A Yes.
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MR. TODD: | don't have any further
guestions. Thank you.

W'll read. And | guess we are done.

Page 195

MR ZACHERL: We'll waive. This is Frank,

| believe we'll be ordering.

MR. CAVATARO The NAACP plaintiffs wll

be ordering a copy of the transcript.

M5. MADDURI: Sane for the League of Wnen

Voters, plaintiff.

(Proceedi ngs concluded at 4:04 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE OF OATH

STATE OF FLORI DA )

COUNTY OF LEON )

I, the undersigned authority, certify that
CRAI G LATI MER renotely appeared before ne on Cctober

11, 2021 and was duly sworn.

SI GNED AND SEALED this 12th day of
Cct ober, 2021.

N/

SANDRA L. NARG Z, RPR, RWVR, CRR, CCR
snar gi z@ontast . net

Comm ssion #GGl72788

EXPI RES: APRIL 18TH, 2022
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CERTI FI CATE OF REPORTER Page 197
STATE OF FLORI DA )
COUNTY OF LEON )
I, SANDRA L. NARAd Z, Registered
Pr of essi onal Reporter, certify that | was authorized

to and did stenographically report the deposition of
CRAI G LATI MER; that a review of the transcript was
requested, and that the foregoing transcript, pages
1 through 195, is a true record of ny stenographic
not es.

| further certify that |I amnot a
relati ve, enpl oyee, attorney or counsel of any of
the parties, nor ami-a relative or enployee of any
of the parties' attorney or counsel connected with
the action, nor am|l financially interested in the
acti on.

DATED this 12th day of October, 2021.

Lsk Wy

SANDRA L. NARG Z, RPR, RWVR, CRR, CRC
Not ary Public
snar gi z@ontast . net
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Cct ober 12, 2021

CRAI G LATI MER
c/o STEPHEN M TODD, ESQUI RE
t odds@i | | sbor oughcounty. org

RE: League of Wnen Voters, et al.
vs. Secretary Lee, et al.
Case No. 4:21 cv 186- MV MVAF

Dear M. Lati ner:

Pl ease take notice that on Cctober 11, 2021, you
gave your deposition in the above cause. At that
time you did not waive your signature.

The above-addressed attorney has ordered a copy of
the transcript and wll nmake arrangenents with you
to read their copy. Please execute the Errata
Sheet, which can be foundiat the back of the
transcript, and have it returned to us at

producti on@hi ppsreporting.comfor distribution to
all parties.

If you do not read and sign the transcript within
thirty (30) days, the original, which has already
been forwarded<tio the ordering attorney, may be
filed wwth the Cerk of the Court.

If you wi.sh to wai ve your signhature now, please sign
your nare to the blank at the bottomof this letter
and return to the address |isted bel ow

Viygwkgg%g;xgurs,

Sandra L. Nargiz, RPR, CVMR, CRR
Phi pps Reporting, Inc.

1551 Forum Pl ace, Suite 200-E
West Pal m Beach, Florida 33401

| do hereby waive ny signature.

CRAI G LATI MER
Job No. 211210
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ERRATA SHEET

DO NOT' WRI TE ON TRANSCRI PT - ENTER CHANGES HERE

In Re: League of Whnen Voters, et al., vs. Secretary
Lee, et al.
Case No.: 4:21 cv 186- MW VAF
CRAI G LATI MER
Cct ober 11, 2021

PAGE LI NE CHANGE REASON

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have
read the foregoing transcript of ny deposition and |
hereby swear that ny testinony therein was true at
the tinme it was given and is now true and correct,

i ncl udi ng any corrections and/or amendnents |isted
above.

Dat e CRAI G LATI MER
Job No. 211210
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3 Talking Points - 2021 legislation

Supervisors of Elections worked throughout the legislative session to make sure legislators
understood the impact their proposals would have on voters, and were successful in
preventing some of the most onerous proposals from making it into legislation - including
cancelling Vote By Mail requests that are currently on file and removing drop boxes
altogether.

Let's not lose sight of the fact that we already had strong laws in that enabled us to run our
2020 election with accessibility and integrity. And our performance was lauded by
President Trump, Governor DeSantis, Secretary of State Laurel Lee, and all the legislators
who spoke for and against this new bill during this legislative session.

The legislation that passed makes it harder to reauest and return Vote By Mail ballots:
- prohibits the use of secure 24-hour droyz’boxes with camera surveillance
- requires voters to submit a new Vote By Mail request every election cycle, and
those requests have to include their DL or SSN
- places a two-ballot limit (with<the exception of immediate family members) on how
many mail-in ballots somearie could gather and turn in on behalf of the elderly or
sick and disabled voters

C. LATIMER

Exhibit 1

S. Nargiz 10/11/21
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4/30/2021

Statement from Craig Latimer, Hillsborough County Supervisor of Elections and President
of the Florida Supervisors of Elections

As Supervisors of Elections, we are unwavering in our commitment to keeping our elections
both secure and accessible. We did that in 2020, to universal acclaim. Elections ran
smoothly, voters participated in record numbers, and election results were verified with
audits in every county in Florida, as provided for in our current election law. My colleagues
and | will continue to work every day to increase voter participation and maintain the
integrity of our elections, following any new requirements established by our lawmakers.

During this legislative session, Supervisors of Elections spent hours talking to legislators
about how proposed legislation would impact voters. For example, in 2020 our voters
overwhelmingly appreciated the peace of mind that came“rom dropping their mail ballot
off in a secure drop box, because they knew that by usiiig the drop box instead of a
mailbox, their ballot would be received on time. We shiould be looking for cost-effective
ways to expand their use, including the use of secure 24-hour drop boxes with camera
surveillance. Instead, the new legislation prohibits that.

Fortunately, proposals that would have been the most disenfranchising, such as cancelling
Vote By Mail requests that voters curcently have on file, were dropped from the final
version of the bill. However, this legislation still makes requesting Vote By Mail ballots and
returning those ballots harder.

After days of debate, our hope is that the initial and unnecessary call for election reform
will not detract from the confidence that was well-earned in 2020. Indeed, after the 2020
General Election, Governor DeSantis said that we had “finally vanquished the ghosts of
Bush vs. Gore,” praising our ability to count 11 million votes quickly and holding Florida up
as an example for other states to follow. Throughout this legislative process, legislators
who supported and opposed the bill commended our performance in 2020, over and over.
I look forward to continuing to earn the trust of my community as | work to preserve our
most precious right to participate in our democratic government.

C. LATIMER

Exhibit 2
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A provision in the proposed Florida law would have required dropboxes like this one outside the Alachua
County Supervisor of Elections office to be monitored. (Grace Banahan/WUFT News)

C. LATIMER

Exhibit 3

S. Nargiz 10/11/21
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FLORIDA SUPERVISORS OF ELECTIONS OPPOSE CONTROVERSIAL VOTING BILL
"SB 90

By Grace Banahan
@ April 21,2021 @8 Florida Votes, Government and politics

A proposed bill in the Florida Legislature is calling for increased voting regulations, including limiting ballot
drop-off box hours and requiring a wet signature on file. All 67 of Florida’s Supervisors of Elections oppose

the bill.

The election administration bill, SB 90, has currentlyzassed through all three of its Senate committees, but
was postponed on its second reading on Tuesday.’Its comparable bill in the House, HB 7041, has passed

through two of its three committees and resides in the House State Affairs Committee.

The bill's sponsor, Sen. Dennis Baxley, considers the regulations a way of taking a proactive approach to

addressing potential election issues in the state.

“I know that safeguarding and maintaining the integrity of our elections is important to all of us,” Baxley

said during a committee hearing. “It wasn't that long ago that we were the butt of every joke about

https://www.wuft.org/news/2021/04/21/supervisors-of-elections-oppose-voting-bill/ 2/6
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elections.”

The president of the Florida Supervisors of Elections and the Hillsborough County Supervisor of Elections

Craig Latimer believes this bill would add obstacles to voters.
“To me, this bill doesn’t make any sense,” he said. “Why would you try to make it harder on the voter?”

The signature matching addition to the bill requires supervisors'to compare a pen-on-paper signature with

a voter’'s current signature. Without a paper, or “wet,” signature on file, the ballot must be rejected.
These measures are proposed in the name of combating voter fraud, which Latimer considers a non-issue.

“I haven't seen any fraud and I haven't heard. one of the legislators cite a specific incident of fraud as they

debated the bill,” he said.

Even if fraud was a prevalent issue in the state, Latimer said the signature regulations the bill calls for

wouldn’t do anything to stop it.

“If you go to a driver’s license bureau there’s actually an official in front of you that’s watching you sign,” he

said. “If you go to vote in-person, there's somebody watching you give us that signature. To me, this bill in

https://www.wuft.org/news/2021/04/21/supervisors-of-elections-oppose-voting-bill/ 3/6
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no way, shape or form can do anything to curb any voter fraud that may be occurring.”

A previous version of the bill called for completely banning drop boxes, but an amendment changed the

language to allow for drop boxes during early voting hours. Latimer still sees administrative issues with the

regulations of the boxes.

“With the amendment, drop boxes are only available during early-voting hours,” he said. “Well, what about

before early voting starts and after early voting ends? How wili'you get your ballot back to me?”

In Florida, ballots are mailed out during a 7-day window between 40 and 33 days before an election as
required by state law. Latimer said this bill will affect the voters who immediately fill out their ballots and

drop them off at a ballot box well before earlyvoting begins.

Currently, Hillsborough County has four<drop boxes that are available outside of early voting, as well as

boxes at all early voting sites. This bill would prohibit the operation of those drop boxes, a condition that

Latimer said might result in their removal.

“With the way this is written, I would have to remove drop boxes,” he said.

https://www.wuft.org/news/2021/04/21/supervisors-of-elections-oppose-voting-bill/ 4/6
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Hillsborough County isn’t the only county that would have to change their drop box practices if the
proposed bill becomes law. Bradford County Supervisor of Elections Amanda Seyfang said the requirements

laid out in the bill would be impractical for the county.

According to the bill text, ballot drop boxes must be monitored in-person by an employee. Since 2001, the

Bradford County Supervisors of Elections Office typically runs an entire election with a three-person staff.
For the rural county, designating an employee to watch the drop box is a waste of resources.

“I could not give up one of my staff members to just sitiat our drop box all day long, nor could I afford with

my budget to hire another staff member just to de:that,” Seyfang said.

Bradford County’s ballot drop box has beeniocated outside the courthouse in Starke ever since drop boxes

were allowed. Seyfang says it was used significantly even before the pandemic.

“If the bill passes with that current language, I would have to just pull my drop box,” Seyfang said. “There’s

no way a county my size could afford it.”

https://www.wuft.org/news/2021/04/21/supervisors-of-elections-oppose-voting-bill/ 5/6
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Bradford County’s drop box is under 24/7 video surveillance. In the 2020 general election, 1,073 of the

3,844 returned vote-by-mail ballots were returned at the drop box location.

Seyfang notes some minor favorable parts of the bill, including a stipulation that a grandchild would be
considered an immediate family member. Currently, only a grandparent is considered an immediate family

member and not a grandchild.

Seyfang’'s main worry is the voters who have no wet signature:to be compared. The Florida Legislature

passed a law in 2015 that allowed digital voter registratiornbeginning in 2017.

“If anybody has registered to vote for the first timesince the law allowed it back in 2017, we would not have
a wet signature on file for them,” Seyfang said:*That's a lot of voters if you think about the increases in

voter registration since 2017.”

https://www.wuft.org/news/2021/04/21/supervisors-of-elections-oppose-voting-bill/ 6/6
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Florida Supervisors of Elections Statement

Florida Supervisors of Elections (FSE) does not support SB90 or HB7041
in their current form, but continues to share information with the

legislature.
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Talking Points - 2021 legislation

Supervisors of Elections are unwavering in our commitment to keeping our elections both
secure and accessible. Let's not lose sight of the fact that we already had strong laws in that
enabled us to run our 2020 election with accessibility and integrity. And our performance
was lauded by President Trump, Governor DeSantis, Secretary of State Laurel Lee, and all
the legislators who spoke for and against this new bill during this legislative session.

Do we look for ways to improve? Of course. But sweeping election reform was not needed
or requested by Supervisors of Elections. And making a lot of changes all at once has the
potential to create voter confusion, more cumbersome administration and bureaucracy,
and worst of all, an erosion of the confidence we've worked so hard to earn.

During this legislative session, Supervisors of Elections spent hours talking to legislators
about how proposed legislation would impact voters. Proposals that would have been
most disenfranchising were dropped from the final version<of the bill, including:

- Cancelling Vote By Mail requests that are currentivon file

- Removing drop boxes altogether

- Restricting the signatures we could look at wihen verifying Vote By Mail ballots

The legislation that passed:

- prohibits the use of secure 24-hcur drop boxes with camera surveillance

- requires voters to submit a new Vote By Mail request every election cycle, and
those requests have to incit:de their DL or SSN

- means that voters will no’longer be able to check a box on their Vote By Mail return
envelope to renew their mail ballot request

- places a two-ballot limit (with the exception of immediate family members) on how
many mail-in ballots someone could gather and turn in on behalf of the elderly or
sick and disabled voters

Encouraging Vote By Mail is one of the ways we avoid lines at in-person voting, so if fewer
voters vote by mail, that could affect wait times during in-person voting. Fortunately, one
thing this bill does not do is prohibit giving food and water to voters in line to vote - it just
prohibits campaigning in that area.

After days of debate, our hope is that the initial and unnecessary call for election reform

will not detract from the confidence that was well-earned in 2020. to participate in our
democratic government.

C. LATIMER
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From: Gerri Kramer

Sent: Thursday, April 22, 2021 4:26 PM EDT
To: Craig Latimer; Craig Latimer

Subject: Points of concern - legislation

We oppose SB90 or HB7041 in their current form but we continue to share information with
legislators.

Points of concern:

Limits Vote By Mail drop off to Early Voting days/hours — that’s a great disservice to voters,
especially those who like to drop off on Monday or Tuesday, when it’s too late to mail it. They
wouldn’t be able to do that the way this legislation is currently written.

There’s a part in the bill requiring ballots with any undervoted races to be reviewed and
duplicated if there are any markings. We had 650,000 undervoted races on Vote By Mail ballots
in the last election. So we would be pulling hundreds of thousands of ballots. Process already in
place - manual recount. Slow down the process.

In 2018, one of the races we physically looked at more thain-15,000 undervotes and only a
handful had any markings in those races.

Limiting the possession of ballots — that has not-been an issue in our county. It’s a solution
looking for a problem. What we heard today is that you could turn in two at a time, day after day,
so I’'m not sure what their intention here is.

Gerri Kramer

Chief Communications Officer

Representing Craig Latimer, Hillsborough County Supervisor of Elections
Governor’s Sterling Award Recipient

Our Vision: To be the best place in America to vote!

Direct: (813) 367-8827 Cell: (813) 415-4337 Email: gkramer@hcsoe.org
VoteHillsborough.org

Be an informed voter!
Follow us: Newsletter — Facebook Twitter Instagram Vimeo

C. LATIMER
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From: Craig Latimer
Sent: Thursday, March 11, 2021 2:22 PM EST
To: David Ramba; Alan Hays; Ron Labasky; Paul Lux; Lori Scott; Julie Marcus; Chris Chambless;

jennifer.edwards@colliercountyfl.gov; lafayettesoe @gmail.com; jadkins@votenassau.com;
vdavis@martinvotes.com; travis@Ilafayettevotes.com; Wendy Sartory Link; Iswan@voteindianriver.com

Subject: RE: FSE Drop Box Recs

Dave,
Ref IICII
Worded a little awkward

, that any such site (should this say drop box instead of site?) must be
physically monitored and staffed during the hours of the site (Does this
mean the hours the site is open or should it be consistent with the hours the
other actual early vote sites are open) that otherwise qualifies as an early
voting

| think it is good to put in electronic monitoring. We can negotiatethat

Craig Latimer, CERA

Hillsborough County Supervisor of Elections
Governor’s Sterling Award Recipient

Our Vision: To be the best place in America to vote!

County Center, 601 E. Kennedy Blvd., 16th Fisor, Tampa, FL 33602
Direct: (813) 276-2320 Fax: (813) 272-7043 Email: clatimer@hcsoe.org
VoteHillsborough.org

Be an informed voter!
Follow us: Newsletter Facebook Twitter Instagram YouTube

From: David Ramba <david@rambaconsulting.com>

Sent: Thursday, March 11, 2021 1:47 PM

To: Alan Hays <alan@lakevotes.com>; Ron Labasky <rlabasky@bplawfirm.net>; Paul Lux
<plux@co.okaloosa.fl.us>; Lori Scott <Iscott@votebrevard.gov>; Julie Marcus
<jmarcus@votepinellas.com>; Craig Latimer <clatimer@hcsoe.org>; Chris Chambless
<cchambless@clayelections.com>; jennifer.edwards@colliercountyfl.gov; lafayettesoe@gmail.com;
jadkins@votenassau.com; vdavis@martinvotes.com; travis@lafayettevotes.com; Wendy Sartory Link
<wendylink@pbcelections.org>; Iswan@voteindianriver.com

Subject: FSE Drop Box Recs

C. LATIMER

Exhibit 7

S. Nargiz 10/11/21




Case 4:21-cv-00186-MW-MAF Document 549-3 Filed 02/05/22 Page 260 of 272

The new language in paragraph 2 I believe reflects our conversation from this morning. I would
welcome your input on this for submittal to the Legislature.

David Ramba

Sent from my iPad
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Draft Recommendations for Florida Legislature on Drop Box Restrictions
and Guidelines for 2021 - FSE Workgroup Recommendations

101.69 Voting in person; return of vote-by-mail ballot.—
(1) The provisions of this code shall not be construed to prohibit any
elector from voting in person at the elector’s precinct on the day of an

election or at an early voting site, notwithstanding that the elector has
requested a vote-by-mail ballot for that election. An elector who has
returned a voted vote-by-mail ballot to the supervisor, however, is deemed
to have cast his or her ballot and is not entitled to vote another ballot or to
have a provisional ballot counted by the county canvassing board. An elector
who has received a vote-by-mail ballot and has not returned the voted
ballot to the supervisor, but desires to vote in person, shall return the

ballot, whether voted or not, to the election board in the elector’s precinct

or to an early voting site. The returned ballot shail be marked “canceled” by
the board and placed with other canceled bailots. However, if the elector
does not return the ballot and the election official:

(@) Confirms that the supervisor has received the elector’s vote-by-mail

ballot, the elector shall not be allowed to vote in person. If the elector
maintains that he or she has not returned the vote-by-mail ballot or remains
eligible to vote, the elector shall be provided a provisional ballot as
provided in s. 101.048.

(b) Confirms that the supervisor has not received the elector’s vote-by-
mail ballot, the elector shall be allowed to vote in person as provided in this

code. The elector’s vote-by-mail ballot, if subsequently received, shall not
be counted and shall remain in the mailing envelope, and the envelope shall

be marked “Rejected as Illegal.”

(c) Cannot determine whether the supervisor has received the elector’s

vote-by-mail ballot, the elector may vote a provisional ballot as provided in
s. 101.048.

SUBSTANTIALLY REWRITTEN BELOW - NOT STRIKE AND UNDERLINED

(2) The supervisor shall allow an elector who has received a vote-by-mail
ballot to physically return a voted vote-by-mail ballot to the supervisor by

C. LATIMER
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placing the envelope containing his or her marked ballot in a secure drop

box.

(a) Secure drop boxes shall be placed at the main office of the supervisor at
each branch office of the supervisor. Secure drop boxes at a supervisor’s
office may be available at any time for voters to place a voted vote-by-
mail ballot if the secure drop box is monitored physically or
electronically.

(b) Secure drop boxes shall be placed at all early voting sites, and shall be
only available for use during the hours of the early voting site, and shall
be physically monitored during any time that a voter can place a voted
vote-by-mail ballot into the drop box by an election worker of the
supervisors office, security officer or a sworn law enforcement officer.

(c) Secure drop boxes may also be placed at any other site that would
otherwise qualify as an early voting site under s. 101.657(1); provided,
however, that any such site must be physically monitored and staffed
during the hours of the site that otherwise qualifies as an early voting
site by an election worker of the supervisors office, security officer or a
sworn law enforcement officer.

(d) All voted ballots shall be collected at the end of each day a drop box is
available and returned to the supervisor’s office. No ballots may be left
unattended or unmonitored in a drop box overnight.
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We are requesting the following amendments to CS/CS/CS/SB 90:

Replace lines 707 — 713:

ballot containing an overvoted race, if there is a clear indication on the ballot that the voter has made a
definite choice in the overvoted race or ballot measure. A duplicate shall include all valid votes as
determined by the canvassing board based on rules adopted by the division pursuant to s. 102.166(4). A

Replace line 811:

social security number. Vote-by-mail voters may also check a box on a vote-by-mail return envelope
certificate to renew their vote-by-mail request, and if their ballot is accepted no further information is
required for the request. However, an absent uniformed service

Replace line 969:
s.101.657 (1). Except for secure drop boxes at an office of the supervisor, a secure drop box may only be
used

C. LATIMER

Exhibit 9

S. Nargiz 10/11/21
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
TALLAHASSEE DIVISION

LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS OF
FLORIDA, INC.,, et al.,

Plaintiffs, CASE NO.: 4:21-cv-186-MW-MAF
V.

LAUREL M. LEE, in her official capacity
As Florida Secretary of State, et al.,

Defendants.
/

AFFIDAVIT OF PEG REESE IN RESPCNSE TO PLAINTIFES’
FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared Margaret
“Peg” Reese, who, having been first duly sworn, deposes and says:

1. I am over the age of eighteen and competent to make this declaration.
I am competent to testify to my direct knowledge regarding the matters and issues
addressed herein.

2. I am currently employed by Craig Latimer, Supervisor of Elections for
Hillsborough County as a Chief of Staff. I have been employed in this position since

February 2009. C. LATIMER

Exhibit 10

S. Nargiz 10/11/21
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3. With regard to Plaintiffs’ First Set of Requests for Production, I submit
the following responses:

REQUEST NO. 4:

Drop boxes are continuously attended and checked. Boxes are emptied at least
daily, more frequently if/as needed.

Prior to Early Voting, an SOE staff member at County Center, the Northwest
Regional office, and the Southeast Regional office submits a helpdesk ticket
alerting the warehouse that either they are in receipt of VBM ballots that need to
be retrieved or that they are in need ofa replacement ballot box prior to
closing. Warehouse staff retrieve ESC's box daily, at the end of the day,
unless Voter Services staff notifies the warehouse that they need an empty box
prior to closing.

During Early Voting, unless warehouse < staff are notified by an Early
Voting site or one of our offices that they need an empty box prior to closing,
boxes are retrieved daily at closing by Eariy Voting couriers at Early Voting sites
and by Warehouse staff at SOE offices.

On Election Day, we retrieve boxes at our offices at 10am, 2pm, 4pm, and
Tpm.

Ballots cast via drop boxes are entered as received by our office on the day
following casting/retrieval. These ballots are processed as are all Vote By Mail
ballots, with a time stamp on the outer return envelope issued when the ballot is
processed through the ReliaVote machine. Signature verification then proceeds
as per normal processing of Vote By Mail ballots.

REQUEST NO. 34:
Drop Boxes Planned for 2022 Elections:
Apollo Beach Community Center 664 Golf and Sea Blvd., Apollo Beach, FL 33572
Austin Davis Public Library 17808 Wayne Road, Odessa, FL 33556
Bloomingdale Regional Public Library 1906 Bloomingdale Ave., Valrico, FL 33596
Bruton Memorial Library 302 W McLendon St., Plant City, FL 33563
C. Blythe Andrews, Jr. Public Library 2607 E Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., Tampa, FL 33610

Page 2 of 7
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Fred B. Karl County Center

601 E Kennedy Blvd., Tampa, FL 33602

Jan Kaminis Platt Regional Library

3910 S Manhattan Ave., Tampa, FL 33611

Jimmie B. Keel Regional Public Library

2902 W Bearss Ave., Tampa, FL 33618

Maureen B. Gauzza Public Library

11211 Countryway Blvd., Tampa, FL 33626

New Tampa Regional Library

10001 Cross Creek Blvd., Tampa, FL 33647

North Tampa Branch Library

8916 N Blvd., Tampa, FL 33604

Northdale Recreation Center

15550 Spring Pine Dr., Tampa, FL 33624

Port Tampa Community Center

4702 W McCoy St., Tampa, FL 33616

Providence West Community Center

5405 Providence Rd., Riverview, FL 33578

Riverview Branch Library

10509 Riverview Dr., Riverview, FL 33578

Robert L. Gilder Elections Service Center

2514 N Falkenburg Rd., Tampa, FL 33619

SouthShore Regional Library

15816 Beth Shields Way, Ruskin, FL 33573

Northwest Elections Office

4575 Gunn Highway, Tampa, FL 33624

Southeast Elections Office

10020 S US Hwy. 301, Riverview, FL 33578

USF TECO Hall (David C. Anchin Center)

4110 USF Apple Drive, Tampa, FL 33620

Temple Terrace Public Library

202 Bullard Parkway, Temple Terrace, FL 33617

Town 'N Country Regional Public Library

7606 Paula Drive, Tampa, FL 33615

\West Tampa Branch Library

2312 W Union Street, Tampa, FL 33607

University Area Community Center

14013 N 22nd Street, Tampa, FL 33613

Hours of Operation:
All Sites:

Primary: All EV Maximum days, 10.AM to 6 PM
General: All EV Maximum days, 77AM to 7 PM

SOE Offices:

July 14 — August 23, business days and hours, with extended hours during Early
Voting and Election Day

September 29 -- November 8: business days and hours, with extended hours
during Early Voting and Election Day

Removal of previously used sites:

Amalie Arena and Raymond James Stadium are unavailable as early voting sites
and thus will not be used for drop boxes. Attempts are underway to secure
alternative/replacement locations for early voting and drop box placement.

The SOE 24 hour drop box at the Elections Service Center will be discontinued.

Page 3 of 7
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REQUEST NO. 35:

Drop boxes are available in Hillsborough County during early voting hours, which
are from 10 AM to 6 PM for primary elections, and from 7 AM to 7 PM during
general elections. Early voting is offered for the maximum number of days allowed
by law.

Drop boxes are available at the permanent offices of the Supervisor of Elections
from the day that domestic civilian ballot are mailed out (7/14/2022 for the primary
and 9/29/2022 for the general) during business hours (8AM to 5 PM) on weekdays
until early voting begins, at which time drop boxes at these locations are available
until 6 PM (primary) or 7 PM (general) and on weekends (10AM to 6 PM for
primary and 7 AM to 7 PM for the general).

Drop boxes are available at the permanent offices of the Supervisor of Elections the
Monday before election day from 8 AM to 5 PM , and on election day from 7 AM
to 7 PM.

We intend to use the same Early Voting sites.as we did in 2020, with the exception
of the Amalie Arena and Raymond James Stadium — both of which were available
during the pandemic but are not available post-pandemic. Additional or replacement
sites may be added, and if so will have drop boxes available.

REQUEST NO. 39:

See RFP 4:

Drop boxes are continuously attended and checked. Boxes are emptied at least daily,
more frequently if/as needed.

Prior to Early Voting, an SOE staff member at County Center, the Northwest
Regional office, and the Southeast Regional office submits a helpdesk ticket alerting
the warehouse that either they are in receipt of VBM ballots that need to be retrieved
or that they are in need of a replacement ballot drop box prior to closing. Warehouse
staff retrieve ESC's box daily, at the end of the day, unless Voter Services staff
notifies the warehouse that they need an empty box prior to closing.

During Early Voting, unless warehouse staff are notified by an Early Voting site or
one of our offices that they need an empty box prior to closing, boxes are retrieved
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daily at closing by Early Voting couriers at Early Voting sites and by Warehouse
staft at SOE offices.

On Election Day, we retrieve boxes at our offices at 10am, 2pm, 4pm, and 7pm.

Ballots cast via drop boxes are entered as received by our office on the day following
casting/retrieval. These ballots are processed as are all Vote By Mail ballots, with a
time stamp on the outer return envelope issued when the return envelope is processed
through the ReliaVote machine. Signature verification then proceeds as per normal
processing of Vote By Mail ballots.

After postal or hand delivered VBM ballots are received by our staff, the return
envelopes are scanned into the Reliavote machine, the voter’s return envelope is
associated with their record in our voter registration database, and trained staff
conduct signature verification. Each envelope has a time stamp when scanned by
the Reliavote machine. All ballots (received via drop boxes, USPS, etc.) are
processed the day after receipt, with the exception of ballots received on election
day when processing occurs continually throughout the day.

Ballots are not batched or coded according to method of receipt.

Ballots are not differentiated, coded ¢r otherwise marked based on which drop box
they were deposited into.

VBM ballots, hand-delivered or dropped off at a drop box, that were sent out by
another county, but delivered to our county are delivered by our staff to the USPS
for delivery to the proper elections office. If such ballots are received by our office
within three days of an election, we send the ballots to the correct elections office
via FEDEX or personal delivery.

VBM requests received by mail or otherwise on paper are scanned into our database
by staff in the mailroom, associated with a voter’s record, and processed by Voter
Services staff. VBM requests received electronically via our website are associated
with a voter’s record and processed by Voter Services staff.

As to cost of processing Vote By Mail requests, the following table shows data from
the 2016, 2018 and 2020 election cycles. The cost is calculated at one request per
minute using the wages/costs for the lowest paid position which performs these
duties. Please note that some of these requests may be good for an entire election
cycle.
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Absentee

Year Election Requests Processing Hours Lowest Hr Rate Cost
2016 2016 PPP 149,761 2,496 $15.72 $39,237.38
2016 Primary 175,443 2,924 $15.72 $45,966.07

2016 General 251,250 4,188 $15.72 $65,827.50

2016 Total 576,454 9,608 $15.72 $151,030.95

2018 2018 Primary 215,345 3,589 $19.80 $71,063.85
2018 General 270,096 4,502 $19.80 $89,131.68

2018 Total 485,441 8,091 $19.80 $160,195.53

2020 2016 PPP 178,551 2,976 $19.80 $58,921.83
2016 Primary 336,394 5,607 $19.80 $111,010.02

2016 General 434,962 7,249 $19.80 $143,537.46

2020 Total 949,907 15,832 $19.80 $313,469.31

REQUEST NO. 40:

Main and permanent branch offices of the Supervisor of Elections are:

Fred B. Karl County Center
601 E. Kennedy Blvd., 16th Floor
Tampa, FL 33602

Robert L. Gilder Elections Sérvice Center
2514 North Falkenburg R4.
Tampa, FL 33619

Northwest Regional Office
4575 Gunn Hwy.
Tampa, FL 33624

Southeast Regional Office
10020 South U.S. Hwy. 301
Riverview, FL 33578
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NAACP Latimer Dep.
Exhibit G
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
TALLAHASSEE DIVISION

LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS OF
FLORIDA, INC.,, et al.,

Plaintiffs,
v.
LAUREL M. LEE, in her official
capacity as Florida Secretary of State, et
al.,
Defendants,
and
REPUBLICAN NATIONAL

COMMITTEE, et al.,
Intervenor-Defendants.

Case No.

4:21-cv-186-MW/MAF
4:21-cv-187-MW/MAF
4:21-cv-201-MW/MAF
4:21-cv-242-MW/MAF

Parties’ Table of Objections and Responses

Witness

Page No.

Deposition of Elizabeth Guzzo taken October 22,

2021

Deposition of Alan Hays taken October 6, 2021

Deposition of Craig Latimer taken October 11, 2021

1

24
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Deposition of Elizabeth Guzzo taken October 22, 2021

Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

Plaintiffs

30:1-14

30:1-7

e Object to Form - Vague, see

Cincinnati Ins. Co. v. Serrano,

No. 11-2075-JAR, 2012 U.S.
Dist. LEXIS 1363, at *13 (D.
Kan. Jan. 5, 2012). Form

objection preserved, vague as

to meaning of “conducting
elections”.

Cincinnati Insurance Co. v.
Serrano does not address the
phrase “conducting elections”
and in fact holds that an
objection that a question is
“vague” is usually improper,
because “[o]nly the witness
knows whether she
understands a question, and
the witness has a duty to
request clarification if
needed,” and “[i]f defending
counsel feels that an answer
evidences a failure to
understand a question, this
may be remedied on cross-
examination.”

Plaintiffs

32:5-9

e Relevance, see Fed. R. Evid.
401, 402,

What the Florida legislature
considered is relevant to the
state’s interest, if any, in the
Challenged Provisions. The
witness was speaking for the
OAG as a 30(b)(6)
representative, within the
scope of the subpoena (See
Subpoena, Exhibit 167— ECF
No. 461-15).

Plaintiffs

33:4-7

e Relevance, see Fed. R. Evid.
401, 402.

Whether the Attorney General
has done any analysis is
relevant to the state’s
interest, if any, in the
Challenged Provisions, and the
intent behind them.

Plaintiffs

39:1-25

39:20-23

e Relevance, see Fed. R. Evid.
401, 402.

Whether the Attorney General
requested the changes in the
bill is relevant to the state’s
interest, if any, in the
Challenged Provisions, and the
intent behind them.
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Deposition of Elizabeth Guzzo taken October 22, 2021

Designating Page Range Objection Response
Party
Plaintiffs 44:1-45:20 44:25-45:3 44:25-45:3
e Object to form - e Question does not assume
Argumentative/assumes facts anything but merely asks
not in evidence; question whether the OAG had
assumes that there are other conducted analysis of any
ways of serving the goals of other ways of serving SB 90’s
changes to 3PVRO goals.
requirements. Garcia v. e Whether OAG has attempted
Clark, No. 1:10-CV-00447-LJ0, to use other ways to serve SB
2012 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 51771, 90’s goals is relevant to the
2012 WL 1232315, at *2 (E.D. state’s interest, if any, in the
Cal. Apr. 12, 2012). Challenged Provisions.
e Garciav. Clark merely granted
a motion to compel
interrogatory response, noting
that assuming facts not in
evidence may be the basis for
a trial objection, and says
nothing about this particular
question.
45:7-12 45:7-13
e (Bject to form - e Question does not state a
argumentative; question legal conclusion but merely
states a legal conclusion that asks the witness to confirm
SB 90 requires "recitation" her understanding of the
(i.e. verbal warnings). See statute’s requirements.
United States v. Barile, 286
F.3d 749, 760 (4th Cir. 2002).
Plaintiffs 53:12-24 53:22-24 e Whether the Attorney General
e Relevance, see Fed. R. Evid. rgqgested the changes in Ehe
401, 402. .b|II is relgvant tg the state’s
interest, if any, in the
Challenged Provisions, and the
intent behind them.
Plaintiffs 56:23-57:3 e Relevance, see Fed. R. Evid. e To the extent that Defendants
401, 402. assert SB 90 is justified by
voter fraud, whether the
Secretary in fact referred any
voter fraud complaints to the
OAG is relevant to the state’s
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Deposition of Elizabeth Guzzo taken October 22, 2021

Designating Page Range Objection Response
Party
interest, if any, in the
Challenged Provisions, and the
intent behind them. Whether
the OAG was aware of such
complaints having been
referred is also relevant to the
state’s interest, if any, in the
Challenged Provisions. The
witness was speaking for the
OAG as a 30(b)(6)
representative, within the
scope of the subpoena (See
Subpoena, Exhibit 167 — ECF
No. 461-15).
Plaintiffs 57:13-58:16 | 58:12-16 Question did not assume
« Object to form - assumes anything. If no enforcement
facts not in evidefice: OAG actions have been brought the
has not filed any enforcement W|tn§ss could say no.
actions against 3PVROs. See Garcia v. Clark merely granted
Garcia v Clark, No. 1:10-CV- a motion to compel )
00447-1)0 2012 U.S. Dist. interrogatory response, noting
LEXIS 5177'1 2012 WL that assuming facts not in
1932315 at *2 (E.D. Cal. Apr evidence may be the basis for
12 2012; B a trial objection, and says
’ ) nothing about this particular
question.
Plaintiffs 63:17-66:14 | 64:21 - 65:8 The stipulated fact does not
e Objection — cumulative. Itis Lender tT; cur:ulahye,
already stipulated that "With efcau.se t e”\;w :ess (sjanswer
respect to enforcement of rg erring to a,1’c >an
Section 97.0575(3)(a), the circumstances” goes beyond
X ’ the stipulated fact and
Attorney General does not ides additional
have any written or unwritten prow es'a 'tiona
information.
procedures or protocols ) )
- . AG Equip. Co. v. AlG Life Ins.
specifically addressing . o
Co affirmed a finding that a
referrals from the Secretary L h ned
pursuant to 97.0575(4)." (See judge W_ ° susfcam.e
ECF 402, p. 38, para. 53). See cumulative objections was not
AG Equi;J o ;/ AIG Life Ins biased; it has nothing to do
T ’ with pretrial stipulations.
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Deposition of Elizabeth Guzzo taken October 22, 2021

Designating Page Range Objection Response
Party
Co., 636 F. Supp. 2d 1210,
1235 (N.D. Okla. 2009).
Plaintiffs 68:2-21 68:18-19 68:18-19
e Objection — cumulative. Itis e This provides additional
already stipulated that "The information beyond the
Attorney General has pursued stipulation—namely, that
no enforcement actions there were no enforcement
against 3PVROs since 2012." actions “initiated,” in addition
(See ECF 402, p. 31, para. 17). to not having been “pursued.”
See AG Equip. Co. v. AlG Life e AG Equip. Co. v. AlG Life Ins.
Ins. Co., 636 F. Supp. 2d 1210, Co affirmed a finding that a
1235 (N.D. Okla. 2009). judge who sustained
cumulative objections was not
biased; it has nothing to do
with pretrial stipulations.
68:20-21 68:20-21
e Object to form < Assumes . .
. e Question assumes nothing,
facts not in exidence; OAG ) ;
. the witness could have said
has not filed any enforcement
. ) that there were no
actions against 3PVROs. See . .
< enforcement actions filed.
Garcia v. Clark, No. 1:10-CV- | | Garcia v. Clark merely granted
(0447-LJ0, 2012 U.S. Dist. beatunifingh ve
LEXIS 51771, 2012 WL interrogator resp onse, notin
1232315, at *2 (E.D. Cal. Apr. gatory response, noting
12, 2012) that assuming facts not in
’ ' evidence may be the basis for
a trial objection, and says
nothing about this particular
question.
Plaintiffs 69:2-15 69:2-3 69:2-3

e Object to form - Assumes

facts not in evidence; OAG
has not filed any enforcement
actions against 3PVROs. See
Garcia v. Clark, No. 1:10-CV-
00447-LJ0, 2012 U.S. Dist.
LEXIS 51771, 2012 WL
1232315, at *2 (E.D. Cal. Apr.
12, 2012).

Question assumes nothing,
the witness could have said
that there were no
enforcement actions filed.

AG Equip. Co. v. AlG Life Ins.
Co affirmed a finding that a
judge who sustained
cumulative objections was not
biased; it has nothing to do
with pretrial stipulations.
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Deposition of Elizabeth Guzzo taken October 22, 2021

Designating Page Range Objection Response
Party
69:9-15 69:9-15
e Objection — cumulative. Itis e This provides additional
already stipulated that "The information beyond the
Attorney General has pursued stipulation—namely, that
no enforcement actions there were no seeking of
against 3PVROs since 2012." injunctions or restraining
(See ECF 402, p. 31, para. 17). orders, specifically.
See AG Equip. Co. v. AlG Life | e Garcia v. Clark merely granted
Ins. Co., 636 F. Supp. 2d 1210, a motion to compel
1235 (N.D. Okla. 2009). interrogatory response, noting
that assuming facts not in
evidence may be the basis for
a trial objection, and says
nothing about this particular
question.
Plaintiffs 70:19-71:3 | 70:19-20 70:19-20
e Object to form!- e Question is asking about the
argumentative; question factual presence of such
assumes iegal conclusion actions, not about the legal
that subsection 4 would authority and does not assume
authorize criminal actions. anything.
See United States v. Barile,
286 F.3d 749, 760 (4th Cir.
2002).
Plaintiffs 72:20-73:19 73:5-11 73:5-11
e Objection - cumulative; It is e The stipulated fact does not
already stipulated that "With render this cumulative, because
respect to enforcement of the witness’s answer referring to
Section 97.0575(3)(a), the “facts and circumstances” goes
Attorney General does not beyond the stipulated fact and
have any written or unwritten provides additional information
procedures or protocols e The stipulated fact does not
specifically addressing address
referrals from the e whether there are other non-
e Secretary pursuant to systematic approaches to
97.0575(4)." (See ECF 402, p. handling referrals in the AG’s
38, para. 53). See AG Equip. office, therefore it is not
Co. v. AlG Life Ins. Co., 636 F. cumulative.
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Deposition of Elizabeth Guzzo taken October 22, 2021

Designating Page Range Objection Response
Party
Supp. 2d 1210, 1235 (N.D.
Okla. 2009).
73:12-15 73:12-15

e Objection - cumulative; It is
already stipulated that "With
respect to enforcement of
Section 97.0575(3)(a), the
Attorney General does not
have any written or unwritten
procedures or protocols
specifically addressing
referrals from the Secretary
pursuant to 97.0575(4)." (Seg
ECF 402, p. 38, para. 53). See
AG Equip. Co. v. AlG Life/lns.
Co., 636 F. Supp. 2d1210,
1235 (N.D. Okla,-2209).

e The stipulated fact does not
directly address whether at a
high level there is a general
process in place for handling
referrals in the AG’s office, aside
from protocols or procedures,
therefore it is not cumulative.

o AG Equip. Co. v. AlG Life Ins.
Co affirmed a finding that a
judge who sustained
cumulative objections was not
biased; it has nothing to do
with pretrial stipulations.
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Deposition of Alan Hays taken October 6, 2021

Designating Page Range Objection Response
Party
Plaintiffs 26:17-27:14 | 26:21-27:1 e Goes to credibility, as the
e Relevance, see Fed. R. Evid. evidence V;'HIShOW thst 5B 30
401, 402. See 134:9-11. Wwas passed along partisan
lines. Indeed, the RNCis a
Intervenor-Defendant.
Plaintiffs 39:10-43:19 | 43:15-43:19 43:15-43:19
e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. e FSE’s statement is admissible
801, 802. not for the truth of any factual
matter asserted by FSE, but
rather to show what FSE’s
official position was.

s The fact that FSE opposed the
law is itself relevant to the
lack of justifications for the
law, and to the Legislature’s
purposes in passing SB 90.

Plaintiffs 46:3 -46:19 e Lack of Foundatidn, see Fed. | ¢ Withdraw designation of

R. Evid. 602

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed! R. Evid. 602 (“A
witness may testify to a
matter only if evidence is
introduced sufficient to
support a finding that the
witness has personal
knowledge of the matter.”).
(“I don’t recall. . ..l would
have to review my written
speech that day.”)

46:12-14 (“I don’t recall . ..
time.” and 46:16-19 (“but |
don’t think . . . that day.”)
The remainder of the
witness’s answer (“As a
matter of fact, the bill did not
include any of our top
priorities”) falls within the
witness’s personal knowledge,
is relevant, and is not contrary
to his statement that he does
not remember what he said
that day.

Any objection to that portion
of the answer was waived
because not
contemporaneously made.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not, required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.
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Deposition of Alan Hays taken October 6, 2021

Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

Plaintiffs

47:13 -47:18

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid.
801, 802.

FSE’s statement is admissible
not for the truth of any factual
matter asserted by FSE, but
rather to show what FSE’s
official position was. The fact
that FSE opposed the law is
itself relevant to the lack of
justifications for the law, and
to the Legislature’s purposes
in passing SB 90.

The witness’s agreement with
the FSE statement concerns
his own views of SB 90, which
is also not hearsay.

Plaintiffs

51:12-53:4

52:11-52:13
e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.
(“Probably so.”)

52:11-52:13

Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified
what witness meant by
“probably so.”

Whether the witness had
recommended to voters that
they mail their ballots a week
in advance is within the
witness’s personal knowledge
and is not speculative.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

Plaintiffs

55:16 — 60:13

55:24 - 56:12

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid.
801, 802. (“They expressed to
us on multiple occasions how
grateful they were for the
drop box convenience, that
they could drop it off after

The statements of voters are
admissible as their then-
existing mental or emotional
state (Fed. R. Evid. 803(3))—
they were “grateful” and why.
In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
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Deposition of Alan Hays taken October 6, 2021

Designating Page Range Objection Response
Party
hours or on the weekends or not required. See Wright &
things like that.”) Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.
Plaintiffs 60:25-61:12 | e Lack of Foundation, see Fed. The witness’s answer is based
R. Evid. 602. on his years of experience as a
e Calls for Speculation, (“l Supervisor of Elections,
expect a significant providing adequate
percentage will probably foundation.
want to continue to vote by In any event, this is a party-
mail.”), Fed. R. Evid. 701. opponent statement as to
e Lack of Personal Knowledge, which personal knowledge is
see Fed. R. Evid. 602 (“A not reqd. See Wright & Miller,
witness may testify to a Fed. Practice & Procedure §
matter only if evidence is 6782.
introduced sufficient to “A significant percentage” is
support a finding that'the not inadmissibility vague.
witness has persenal Witness was instructed to ask
knowledge of the matter.”). for clarification if he did not
e Object to Form - Vague, see understand a question and
Cincinnati ins. Co. v. Serrano, evidently understood this one.
No. 13:2075-JAR, 2012 U.S. [17:21-24].
Dist.'LEXIS 1363, at *13 (D. Cincinnati Insurance Co. v.
K@n. Jan. 5, 2012). (Form Serrano does not address the
objection preserved, vague as phrase “a significant
to meaning of “a significant percentage” and in fact holds
percentage”). that an objection that a
guestion is “vague” is usually
improper, because “[o]nly the
witness knows whether she
understands a question, and
the witness has a duty to
request clarification if
needed,” and “[i]f defending
counsel feels that an answer
evidences a failure to
understand a question, this
may be remedied on cross-
examination.”
Plaintiffs 66:9-67:25 66:20 — 66:25 Objection waived because not

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.
(“ wouldn’t begin to

contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been made,

9
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Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

speculate the distance. . ..
we can . .. probably
determine what make and
model of the caritis....”).

counsel could have clarified
what the witness did and did
not know, and the basis for it.
The witness described what
he did know about the
position of the cameras, while
declining to speculate on the
precise distance. The
information that he did
provide is relevant to the
security provided by the
cameras and within his
personal knowledge.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

Plaintiffs

68:4 —70:22

68:10 — 68:24

e Specuiation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.
(Spaculates that because “no
one informed us of any
suspected misdeeds that
might have been done there”
and “there was no evidence
inside the box on any of the
ballots” that there was “no
need” to review the footage).

10

68:10 - 68:24

Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
The witness is Supervisor of
Elections for Lake County and
is describing what his office in
fact did and its reasons for
doing it, which is not
speculative and as to which he
has personal knowledge.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.
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Designating Page Range Objection Response
Party
Plaintiffs 76:12-77:15 | 76:12-76:15 76:12 -76:15

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

e Object to Form - Vague, see
Cincinnati Ins. Co. v. Serrano,
No. 11-2075-JAR, 2012 U.S.
Dist. LEXIS 1363, at *13 (D.
Kan. Jan. 5, 2012). (Form
objection preserved, vague as
to meaning of “popular”).

76:18 -77:11

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid.
801, 802.

11

e The witness is Supervisor of
Elections for Lake County and
would know whether the
office’s drop boxes were
heavily used—i.e., whether
they were popular.

e Inany event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

e Asto vagueness, Cincinnati
Insurance Co. v. Serrano does
not address the word
“popular” and in fact holds
that an objection that a
guestion is “vague” is usually
improper, because “[o]nly the
witness knows whether she
understands a question, and
the witness has a duty to
request clarification if
needed,” and “[i]f defending
counsel feels that an answer
evidences a failure to
understand a question, this
may be remedied on cross-
examination.”

76:18 -77:11

e The voters’ statements at
76:21-23 are their then-
existing mental or emotional
state (that they appreciated
the drop boxes) and so
admissible under Fed. R. Evid.
803(3).
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Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

77:12-77:15

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid.
801, 802.

e The remainder of witness’s
answer does not involve
hearsay at all.

77:12-77:15

e The voter’s statements
expressing appreciation are
their then-existing mental or
emotional state and so
admissible under Fed. R. Evid.
803(3).

Plaintiffs

78:24-79:21

79:10-79:13

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid.
801, 802.

79:10 — 79:13

e There is no out-of-court
statement here. The witness
states what he did—consulted
with supervisors in other
counties who had very
successfully used it” and what
he decided based on those
conversations.

e Inany event, the Supervisors
are all party opponents, so
any implied statement is
admissible as a party-
opponent statement.

Plaintiffs

84:15 - 84:23

e Calls for a legal conclusion,
see United States v. Barile,
286 F.3d 749, 760 (4th Cir.
2002).

e This testimony goes to the
witness’s factual
understanding of the law and
his reasons for removing a
drop box, not to a legal
interpretation of the statute.

e Inany event, this is not
contested—the parties agree
that, as the witness says, you
can no longer have a camera-
monitored drop box after SB
90.

12
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Designating Page Range Objection Response
Party
Plaintiffs 85:10-87:18 | 85:10-85:14 85:10-85:14

e Relevance, see Fed. R. Evid.
401, 402.

87:1-87:8

e Calls for a legal conclusion,
see United States v. Barile,
286 F.3d 749, 760 (4th Cir.
2002).

87:9-87:18

e Relevance, se¢ Fed. R. Evid.
401, 402.

e Object'to Form - Vague, see
Cincinnati Ins. Co. v. Serrano,
No. 11-2075-JAR, 2012 U.S.
Dist. LEXIS 1363, at *13 (D.
Kan. Jan. 5, 2012). (Form
objection preserved, vague as
to meaning of “necessary”).

The fact that the witness, a
longstanding Supervisor of
Elections, thinks the in-person
monitoring requirement is
“absurd” goes to the lack of
justification for that
requirement.

87:1-87:8

This testimony goes to the
witness’s factual
understanding of the law and
his reasons for removing a
drop box, not to a legal
interpretation of the statute.

87:9-87:18

The fact that the witness, a
longstanding Supervisor of
Elections, thinks the $25,000
fine is “a slap in the face,”
“insulting,” and “totally
unnecessary, unwarranted,
and completely out of order”
goes to the lack of justification
for that provision.

As to vagueness, Cincinnati
Insurance Co. v. Serrano does
not address the word
“necessary” and in fact holds
that an objection that a
guestion is “vague” is usually
improper, because “[o]nly the
witness knows whether she
understands a question, and
the witness has a duty to
request clarification if
needed,” and “[i]f defending
counsel feels that an answer
evidences a failure to
understand a question, this

13
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Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

may be remedied on cross-
examination.”

Plaintiffs

91:13 -91:17

91:13 -91:17

e Calls for a legal conclusion,
see United States v. Barile,
286 F.3d 749, 760 (4th Cir.
2002).

91:13 -91:17

This testimony goes to the
witness’s factual
understanding of the law and
his reasons for removing a
drop box, not to a legal
interpretation of the statute.

Plaintiffs

92:17 -96:13

94:19 —96:5
e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

e Lack of Personal Knowledgg,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

94:19 -96:5

Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified
the basis for the witness’s
knowledge.

The witness is being asked
about a prior statement in
which he described his drop
box as “more secure” than the
USPS mailbox that replaced it
as a result of SB 90, and is
explaining why he
characterized it that way. His
explanation concerns the
activities of his own office,
and falls within his personal
knowledge.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

Plaintiffs

96:18 —97:18

97:10-18

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid.
801, 802 (postal service
notice being offered for the
truth of the matter asserted

The underlying postal service
notice is admissible as a public
record under Fed. R. Evid.
803(8) — a statement of a
public office setting forth that
office’s activities.

14
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Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

that the USPS will have
difficulties with promptness).

In any event, admissible not
only for the truth of the
matter asserted but also for
the effect on listeners,
including the witness and
voters, who will need to adjust
mail delivery expectations as a
result of the Post Office’s
statement, whether or not it is
true.

Plaintiffs

99:2-100:4

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid.
801, 802.

Admissible not for truth of any
factual matter asserted but for
the outcome of the
conversation: that witness
was unable to reach an
arrangement with the Post
Office whereby ballots
deposited in the USPS mailbox
outside his office would be
delivered directly to him,
without intermediate
processing.

Plaintiffs

102:2 -
102:12

102:7 — 102:12

o Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.

Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified
the basis for the witness’s
knowledge.

The witness’s assertion is
based on his personal
knowledge and experience
serving as Supervisor of
Elections for many years.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

Plaintiffs

103:2 -104:1

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701. (“It would be my

There is ample foundation and
basis for this testimony in the

15
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Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

opinion that the USPS box. . .
.II)

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

witness’s prior explanation of
the differences between mail-
handling and drop boxes. E.g.,
94:21-96:5.

e Inany event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

Plaintiffs

122:14 -
123:16

122:18 -123:1

e Calls for a legal conclusion, see
United States v. Barile, 286
F.3d 749, 760 (4th Cir. 206).

123:2-123:6

e Calls for a.lsgal conclusion, see
United States v. Barile, 286
F.3d 749, 760 (4th Cir. 2002).

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid.

801, 802.

123:7-123:10

e Calls for a legal conclusion, see
United States v. Barile, 286
F.3d 749, 760 (4th Cir. 2002).

o Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

122:18-123:1

< The witness is explaining his
own factual understanding of
the law, which is relevant as
he will be the one to apply it
in Lake County.

123:2-123:6

e The witness expressly declines
to offer any legal conclusion
and does not convey any out-
of-court statement.

123:7-123:10

e The witness is explaining his
own factual understanding of
the law, which is relevant as
he will be the one to apply it
in Lake County.

e Lack of personal knowledge
objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified
the basis for the witness’s
knowledge.

e The witness’s answer reflects
how he will apply the law in
his own county as Supervisor

16
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Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

of Elections, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

Plaintiffs

125:6 -
126:17

126:12-14

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

126:15-17

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

o Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

126:12-14

Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified
the basis for the witness’s
knowledge.

The witness is the Supervisor
of Elections for Lake County
and has experience with this
system, providing ample basis
for his testimony.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

126:15-17

Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified
the basis for the witness’s
knowledge.

The witness is the Supervisor
of Elections for Lake County
and has experience with this
system, providing ample basis
for his testimony.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to

17
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Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

Plaintiffs

127:12 -
127:18

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.
(“[1f one were to
calculate ...”)

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602. (“But
beyond that, | don’t know of
any impact it would have.”)

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified
the basis for and extent of the
witness’s knowledge.

e The witness explained the
extent of his knowledge—
there would be some fiscal
impact, but he does not know
exactly what it would be. That
testimony is relevant to show
the effects of the provision,
and within his personal
knowledge as a Supervisor of
Elections.

e Inany event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

Plaintiffs

144:15 -
145:17

144:15 - 144:20
e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.

18

144:15-144:20

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified
the basis for the witness’s
knowledge.

e The witness amply explained
the basis for this statement,
including at 94:21-96:5, and is
not speculating.

e Inany event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &




Case 4:21-cv-00186-MW-MAF Document 549-4 Filed 02/05/22 Page 20 of 45

Deposition of Alan Hays taken October 6, 2021

Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

144:21 - 144:24

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid.
801, 802.

145:4-17

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid.
801, 802 (“. .. the lady asked
me ‘why are they doing
this.””)

Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

144:21 - 144:24

e The witness does not convey
any out-of-court statement,
much less for the truth of a
factual assertion, but instead
refers to the lack of any
statement.

145:4-17

e Objection waived because not

contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified
the basis for the witness’s
knowledge.

e The witness statement that he

does not know of any other
justifications for the
challenged law is a matter

within his personal knowledge

and relevant, since the
witness is an experienced
Supervisor of Elections.

e The witness’s statement that
he tried to explain to
legislators that the law was
bad policy is within his
personal knowledge and
relevant to the purposes of
the law.

e Inany event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

e Asto hearsay, the quoted
question “Why are they doing
this?” does not contain an

19
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Designating Page Range Objection Response
Party
assertion of fact and thus is
not hearsay.
Plaintiffs 150:12 - 150:12-21 150:12-21
151:22

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

151:17 - 151:22

e Speculation; fed. R. Evid. 701.
(“1 guessone could conclude
that they probably are.”)

The witness was asked about
and testified to his own
awareness of fraud events,
which as Supervisor of
Elections he would have
reason to be aware of, had
they occurred.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

151:17 - 151:22

Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified
the basis for the witness’s
knowledge.

The witness was asked about
and offered his own opinion
about the sufficiency of
safeguards, as to which he
clearly has personal
knowledge, and which is
based on his experience as
Lake County Supervisor of
Elections. He expressly
explains the basis for that
opinion in his answer—that he
has not seen any instances of
fraud.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &

20
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Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782
Defendants 153:6-19 153:6-19 Defendants will preserve this
e Fed. R. Evid. 401 and 402 designation becaTuse Plaintiffs
. L designate material related to
(Assistance claim dismissed; L )
discussion of ballot collection ballot harvesting, including at
. 120:7-12.
is irrelevant)
e Fed. R. Evid. 802 (Hays Exhibit | Regarding Hays Exhibit 13,
13, marked as an exhibit at Defendants take the position that
152:1-2, is Trial Ex. 181, to objection to exhibits in deposition
which Plaintiffs maintain their | designations is improper because
hearsay objection, which was | @xhibits are admitted as a matter
timely asserted in the Exhibit " | of course if the accompanying
List, ECF No. 402-1 at 38.) testimony is admitted.
Nevertheless, Hays Exhibit 13
(Trial Ex. 181) is offered here not
for the truth of the matter
asserted, but to show that the
State was notified of the
Supervisor’s concerns and
recommendations.
Defendants 154:7-9; and 154:7-9; and Defendants will preserve this
154:24-25 I-154:24-25 designation because Plaintiffs
e Fed. R. Evid. 401 and 402 designate mat.eriall reIatfed to
. L ballot harvesting, including at
(Assistance claim dismissed; 120:7-12
discussion of ballot collection ) '
is irrelevant)
Defendants 177:15-178:18 | e Fed. R. Evid. 401 and 402 e Relevant because
(“SB90 would not prevent”) demonstrates 3PVROs have a
history of fraud in Florida, and
thus illustrates the need for
the legislature to further
regulate 3PVROs and the
importance of notifying voters
of alternative methods of
registration besides 3PVROs.
Plaintiffs 202:17-24 e Legal conclusion, see United | ® The witness is describing his

States v. Barile, 286 F.3d 749,
760 (4th Cir. 2002).

factual understanding of the

21
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Party
effects of Senate Bill 90, not a
legal conclusion.

e Inany event, it is not disputed
that Senate Bill 90 requires
drop boxes to be manned.

Plaintiffs 208:1-25 208:8-13 e Defendant does not speculate
e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701 on the exact amo.unt and
(“ would have to look at it to states th?t_ spgndmg would be
decide . . . ") a poor ut|I|.zat|on of taxpayer
dollars, which does not
depend on the exact
calculation.
Defendants 209:22 - e Fed. R. Evid. 802 (Hays Exhibit | Defendants take the position that
210:21 15, marked as an exhibit at objection to exhibits in deposition
209:19-20, is Trial Ex. 283, to | designations is improper because
which Plaintiffs maintain exhibits are admitted as a matter
their hearsay okjection, of course if the accompanying
which was timely asserted in | testimony is admitted.
the Exhibit List, ECF No. 402-1 Nevertheless, Defendants offer
at 38,) Hays Exhibit 15 (Trial Ex. 183) not
for the truth of the matter
asserted by the policy, but only for
the existence of a policy;

Supervisor Hays testified based on

has personal knowledge that the

policy was followed.

Alternatively, it is a record kept

and maintained in the course of a

regularly conducted activity of a

business, organization,

occupation, or calling under FRE

803(6).

Plaintiffs 220:21 - 221:2-221:11 221:2-221:11
222:7

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602. (“If |
didn’t send that identical
one, | certainly sent one very
similar.”) (“I may have sent

22

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
Had an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified
the basis for the witness’s
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Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

that to two or three others
[sic] legislators as well.”)

222:2 -222:7

e Chiject to Form - Assumes
Facts Not in Evidence, Garcia
v. Clark, No. 1:10-CV-00447-
LJO, 2012 U.S. Dist. LEXIS
51771, 2012 WL 1232315, at
*2 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 12,

2012) (Form objection
preserved, 222:5).

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.

knowledge and the extent of
his recollection.

The witness is describing his
own text messages, and he
relays the extent of his
knowledge and does not go
beyond it.

The witness’s statement that
he probably sent such text
messages (or one very similar)
to a Senator is relevant to the
information before the
legislature in connection with
SB 90.

In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

222:2 -222:7

The question does not assume
anything — it quotes from the
withess’s own statement, in
which he in fact described the
law in that way.

The witness’s opinion that the
elimination of video
surveillance of drop boxes
does not help anyone is not
speculative, but is based on
his years of experience as
Supervisor of Elections in Lake
County, and is fully explained
in earlier testimony.

23
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Plaintiffs 25:14 - 26:6 25:17 - 26:6 25:17 - 26:6
e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701. e Objection waived because not
See 82:16 —83:17 (“l am contemporaneously made.
speculating at this point, we ECF 403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
haven't had an election.”) 32(d)(3)(B). Had an objection
o Lack of Personal Knowledge, been raised, counsel could
see Fed. R. Evid. 602 (“A have clarified the basis for the
witness may testify to a matter witness’s knowledge and
only if evidence is introduced opinions.
sufficient to support a finding e This is a party-opponent
that the witness has personal statement as to which
knowledge of the matter.”). personal knowledge is not, in
See also 82:16 —83:17 (“l am any event, required. See
speculating at this point, we Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice
haven't had an election.”} & Procedure § 6782.

e The witness is describing his
own opinions, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

e The witness’s opinions are
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

Plaintiffs 27:11-28:24 | 28:23-24 28:23-24

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602 (“A
witness may testify to a matter
only if evidence is introduced
sufficient to support a finding
that the witness has personal
knowledge of the matter.”).

(“1 don’t know that we were
listened to.”)
e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Had an objection
been raised, counsel could have
clarified the basis for the
witness’s knowledge and
opinions.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

e The witness is describing his
own opinions, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

24
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Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

e The witness’s opinions are
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

e The witness was asked whether
he believes he had adequate
opportunity to participate in
the legislative process; he
answered “l don’t know that
we were listened to”; use of
don’t know” in this context
does not demonstrate that the
witness did not know the
answer to the question.

Ill

Plaintiffs

47:11 -48:13

47:18-20

e Legal conclusion, see United
States v. Barile, 2&6 F.3d 749,
760 (4th Cir. 2002).

47:21-23

e Legal conclusion, see United
States v. Barile, 286 F.3d 749,
760 (4th Cir. 2002).

47:18-20

e Form objection not made at the
deposition is waived. ECF 403
94 & Fed. R. Civ. P. 32(d)(3)(B).

e The question does not call for a
finding of law; the question
asks the witness, in his capacity
as a Supervisor of Elections,
about the practice of his office
in certain factual
circumstances.

e The witness is explaining his
own factual understanding of
the law, which is relevant as he
will be the one to apply it in
Hillsborough County.

47:21-23

e Form objection not made at the
deposition is waived. ECF 403
94 & Fed. R. Civ. P. 32(d)(3)(B).

e The question does not call for a
finding of law; the question
asks the witness, in his capacity
as a Supervisor of Elections,
about the practice of his office

25
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in certain factual
circumstances.

e The witness is explaining his
own factual understanding of
the law, which is relevant as he
will be the one to apply it in
Hillsborough County.

Plaintiffs

58:24 - 60:5

59:9-10

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.

See 59:11 —59:16 (“It hasn’t
because right now all of the
requests that are onfile . ..
will be good through 2022.”).

59:9-10

e The question does not call for
speculation; the witness
responds referencing the
factual changes which will be
imposed by SB90.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

e The witness is describing his
own opinions, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

e The witness’s opinions are
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

e The witness is explaining his
factual understanding of the
law, which is relevant as he will
be the one to apply itin
Hillsborough County.

Plaintiffs

74:13-75:21

74:16-21

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.

See 59:11 — 59:16 (“It hasn’t
because right now all of the
requests that are on file . ..
will be good through 2022.”).

74:16-21

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Had an objection
been raised, counsel could have
clarified the basis for the
witness’s knowledge and
opinions.

26
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e The witness is describing his
own opinions, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

e The witness’s opinions are
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which
personal knowledge is not, in
any event, required. See
Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice
& Procedure § 6782.

Plaintiffs

88:2-113:16

95:21-25

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evia. 801,
802.

98:17-24

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

27

95:21-25

e The witness is describing his
own opinions, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

e The witness’s opinions are
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

e The witness’s reference to the
President, Governor, and SoS
statements admissible not for
the truth of any factual matter
asserted by President,
Governor, or SoS, but rather to
show what their official
position was.

98:17-24

e The question asks the witness
about a statement released by
his office after SB90 was
passed, that he testified he
helped prepare;

e The question asks the witness
about a statement of a party-
opponent and is not hearsay
under FRE 801;
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99:6-18

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

99:19-22

e Hearzay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802

100:1-4

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

28

e the statement is not presented
for the truth of the matter
asserted but to demonstrate
the effect of those statements
on the witness’s office.

99:6-18

e The question asks the witness
about a statement released by
his office after SB90 was
passed, that he testified he
helped prepare;

¢ The question does not contain
an assertion of fact and thus is
not hearsay;

e The question asks the witness
about a statement of a party-
opponent and is not hearsay
under FRE 801.

99:19-22

e The question asks the witness
about a statement released by
his office after SB90 was
passed, that he testified he
helped prepare;

e The question does not contain
an assertion of fact and thus is
not hearsay;

e The question asks the witness
about a statement of a party-
opponent and is not hearsay
under FRE 801

100:1-4

e The question does not contain
an assertion of fact and thus is
not hearsay; the witness is
responding based on his own
experience, about which he has
personal knowledge.
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100:25-101:5

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602 (“A
witness may testify to a
matter only if evidence is
introduced sufficient to
support a finding that the
witness has personal
knowledge of the matter.”). {“l
don’t recall at this time.”)

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evi:i. 801,
802.

101:16-25

» Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.
(“1 think | spoke to that talking
about....”)

29

e The question asks the witness
about a statement of a party-
opponent and is not hearsay
under FRE 801

100:25-101:5

e The witness is shown a news
article in which he is quoted,
and asked about the
statements he made in the
article.

o.The question asks the witness
about a statement of a party-
opponent and is not hearsay
under FRE 801.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

101:16-25

e Form objection not made at the
deposition is waived. ECF 403
94 & Fed. R. Civ. P. 32(d)(3)(B).
This could have been cured by
establishing more definitively
that witness has no reason to
dispute accuracy of the quote.

e The witness is shown a news
article in which he commented,
and asked about the
statements he made in the
article.

e The question asks the witness
about a statement of a party-
opponent and is not hearsay
under FRE 801.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
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required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.
102:4-20 102:4-20

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

103:3<11

» Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

104:2-3
e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701

30

e Form objection not made at the
deposition is waived. ECF 403
94 & Fed. R. Civ. P. 32(d)(3)(B).
This could have been cured by
establishing basis for personal
knowledge.

e. The question asks the witness
about a statement of a party-
opponent and is not hearsay
under FRE 801.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

103:3-11

e Form objection not made at the
deposition is waived. ECF 403
94 & Fed. R. Civ. P. 32(d)(3)(B).
Witness’s basis for personal
knowledge could have been
established through
questioning.

e The witness is describing his
own opinions, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

104:2-3
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106:6-11

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701

¢ Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

31

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Additional
guestioning could have
established witnesses basis for
making the statement.

e The witness is responding as to
the 2020 elections process in
Hillsborough County, which he
testified he oversaw, and about
which he has personal
knowledge.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

106:6-11

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. Had
an objection been raised,
counsel could have clarified the
basis for the witness’s
knowledge.

e The witness is describing his
own opinions, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

e The witness’s opinions are
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

¢ In any event, this is a party-
opponent statement as to
which personal knowledge is
not required. See Wright &
Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.
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109:8-19

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701

111:7-15

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

111:36 -112:3

s“Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.

| See 82:16 —83:17 (“l am
speculating at this point, we
haven't had an election.”)

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602. See also
82:16 —83:17 (“l am
speculating at this point, we
haven't had an election.”)

32

109:8-19

e Witness testifying about the
contents of an FSE statement
that he has established he
helped prepare, about which
he has personal knowledge.

e This is a party-opponent
statement which is not hearsay
under FRE 801, and as to which
personal knowledge is not, in
any event, required. See Wright
& Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

111:7-15

e This is a party-opponent
statement which is not hearsay
under FRE 801,

e Not hearsay; the witness has
established that he prepared
the statement referenced.

111:16-112:3

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). If raised, witness
additional questions could have
elicited basis for witness’
testimony.

e The witness is describing his
own assessment of the impact
of SB 90, as to which he has
personal knowledge.

e The witness’s opinions are
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
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112:4-112:8

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.
e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

113:10-18

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

e Object to Form - Compound
guestion (“Do you agree that
the legislation makes it harder
to request and return a vote-
by-mail ballot by . .. ?”), see
Atunnise v. Mukasey, 523 F.3d
830, 835 (7th Cir.

2008) (“There is a reason why
courts disfavor compound

Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

e The witness is explaining his
factual understanding of the
law, which is relevant as he will
be the one to apply itin
Hillsborough County.

112:4-8

e The witness is explaining his
factual understanding of the
law, which is relevant as he will
be the one to apply itin
Hillsborough County.

e The witness is describing his
own understanding of the law,
as to which he has personal
knowledge.

e The witness’s statement is
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

113:10-18

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

e Question does not call for a
legal conclusion; the witness is
explaining his factual
understanding of the law,
which is relevant as he will be

33
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guestions posed to witnesses the one to apply itin
during trial; they are likely to Hillsborough County.
elicit an ambiguous e The witness is describing his
response.”). (Form objection own understanding of the law,
preserved at 113:16-18.) as to which he has personal
e Legal conclusion, see United knowledge.
States v. Barile, 286 F.3d 749, | e The witness’s statement is
760 (4th Cir. 2002). Object to based on his years of
Form - Assumes Facts Not in experience as a Supervisor of
Evidence, Garcia v. Clark, No. Elections.
1:10-CV-00447-LJ0, 2012 U.S. | e Question did not assume
Dist. LEXIS 51771, 2012 WL anything; question asked for
1232315, at *2 (E.D. Cal. Apr. the witness’s opinion as to the
12, 2012) (Form objection provisions of SB90.
preserved). e Question is not compound;
guestion uses “request and
return” as two related actions
under the vote-by-mail
provisions of SB90.
Plaintiffs 115:25— 115:25 - 116:3 115:25-116:3
144:5

e Specuiation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.
Obiject to Form - Compound
Guestion (“Do you agree that

i the legislation makes it harder

to request and return a vote-by-
mail ballot by . . . ?”), (Form
objection preserved). See
Atunnise v. Mukasey, 523 F.3d
830, 835 (7th Cir. 2008).

116:5-10

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.
e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

34

e The witness is describing his
opinions, as to which he has
personal knowledge.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

e The witness’s opinion is based
on his years of experience as a
Supervisor of Elections.

e The question is not compound
because “administration” and
“bureaucracy” are related
concepts.

116:5-10

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
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116:12-20

e Hearsay, seeFed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

| 126:4-9
e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.

35

32(d)(3)(B). If raised, witness
additional questions could have
elicited basis for witness’
testimony.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

e The witness is describing his
own opinions, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

e The witness’s statement is
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

116:12-20

e Out of court statements not
offered for the truth of any
factual matter but rather to
show that the witness received
guestions from the public.

126:4-9

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Basis for witness
answer could be established
through further questioning.
For 125:25-126:3, questioner
rephrased after initial objection
and there was no further
objection.

e Not speculative; the witness
explains that the situation
depends, and explains with an
example.
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127:16-21

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802. (“Anecdotally I've heard
voterssay....”)

130:22-131:3

e Lack of Personal Knowledgg,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602. ~“
don’t remember the other. ..
| just don’t remeiviber off the
top of my head right now.”

131:4-7
e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.

131:24-132:7

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602. (“... |
don’t remember the exact
context of why | said that.”)

36

e The witness is describing his
own opinions, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

e The witness’s statement is
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

127:16-21

e Hearsay exception; present
sense impression; statement
against interest.

130:22-131:3

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

e Witness’ answer indicates he
did have personal knowledge as
to several members of the work
group, and he testified that he
was part of the FSE, so would
have personal knowledge as to
its members.

131:4-7

e Witness testified that he was
part of the FSE, so would have
personal knowledge as to its
members.

131:24-132:7

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Basis for witness
answer could be established
through further questioning.
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135:7-11

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602,

137:23 -138:2

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

37

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

e Witness asked about the
contents of an email that he
wrote, about which he has
personal knowledge.

135:7-11

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made.
ECF 403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Basis for witness
answer could be established
through further questioning.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which
personal knowledge is not, in
any event, required. See
Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice
& Procedure § 6782.

e Witness is testifying as to his
personal experience as a
Supervisor of Elections.

137:23 -138:2

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not required. See
Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

e The witness is providing his
own opinions, based on his
years of experience as a
Supervisor of Elections, about
which he has personal
knowledge.
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138:4-13 138:4-13
e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R. e This is a party-opponent
Evid. 701. statement as to which personal
o Lack of Personal Knowledge, knowledge is not required. See
see Fed. R. Evid. 602. Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.
e The witness is providing his
own opinions, based on his
years of experience as a
Supervisor of Elections, about
which he has personal
knowledge.
141:21-25 141:21-25
e Calls for a legal conclusio:;,'see | e This is a party-opponent
United States v. Barile, 286 statement as to which personal
F.3d 749, 760 (4th Cir. 2002). knowledge is not required. See
e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R. Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice &
Evid. 701. Procedure § 6782.
o Lack of Personal Knowledge, e The witness is explaining his
see Fed! R. Evid. 602. factual understanding of the
law, which is relevant as he will
be the one to apply itin
Hillsborough County.
Plaintiffs 148:16 - 148:16-20 148:16-20, 21-23
148:23 e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801, |e Out of court statements not
802. offered for the truth of any
factual matter but rather to
148:21-23 shon that the Yvitness
received questions from the
e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801, public.
802.
Plaintiffs 156:13 - 156:13-23 156:13-23
170:22 .
e Lack of Personal Knowledge, e This is a party-opponent
see Fed. R. Evid. 602. (“l can’t statement as to which personal
give you a name right off the knowledge is not required. See
bat.”) Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

38
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157:23-158:2

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

o Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

e Object to Form - Vague as to
time and version/iteration of
Senate Bill 90, and meaning of
“were not in response to
requests.” see Cincinnati Ins.
Co. v. Serrano, No. 11-2075-
JAR, 2012 U.S. Dist. LEXIS
1363, at *13 (D. Kan. Jan. 5,
2012). Form objection
preserved at 158:1.

159:17-23

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701,

e Lack ef Personal Knowledge,
see ied. R. Evid. 602.

e_Hzarsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802, as to lines 159:21-23.

160:2—-6

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

39

157:23-158:2

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not required. See
Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

e The witness’s response is based
on personal knowledge from
his experience as a Supervisor
of Elections during the SB90
legislative process.

« The question is not vague. The
withess was able answer, and
objecting counsel could have
asked for clarification during
re-direct.

159:17-23

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Basis for
foundation and basis for
personal knowledge could have
been established through
further questioning.

e This is a party-opponent
statement which is not hearsay
under FRE 801, and as to which
personal knowledge is not
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

¢ In any event, this is not
hearsay. Witness is describing
what he observed.

160:2-6

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
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161:16-22

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

162:12-20

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

e Lack of Personal Knowledgg,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

e Object to Form - Laci of
Foundation, see i-ed. R. Evid.
602. (Objectieh preserved at
162:16-17)

164:1-9

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

e Lack of Foundation, see Fed. R.
Evid. 602.

40

32(d)(3)(B). Basis for
foundation could have been
established through further
questioning.

e Any out-of-court statements of
the voters are present sense

161:16-22

e Any out-of-court statements of
the voters are present sense.

162:12-20

» Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Basis for
foundation and basis for
personal knowledge could have
been established through
further questioning.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not required. See
Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

e The witness’s testimony is
based on his experience as a
Supervisor of Elections, on
which he has personal
knowledge.

164:1-9

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not required. See
Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

e The witness’s testimony is
based on his experience as a
Supervisor of Elections, on
which he has personal
knowledge.
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166:2-8

e Hearsay, see Fed. R. Evid. 801,
802.

166:19 -167:2

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

e Object to Form - Lack of
Foundation, see Fed. R. Evid.
602. (Objection preserved at
166:22).

168:19-23

« Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.

Evid. 701.
o Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

41

166:2-8

e No out of court statement
presented.

e The witness’s testimony is from
his personal knowledge based
on years of experience as a
Supervisor of Elections.

166:19-167:2

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Basis for personal
knowledge could have been
established through further
questioning.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not required. See
Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice &
Procedure § 6782.

168:19-23

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Basis for personal
knowledge could have been
established through further
questioning.

e This is a party-opponent

statement as to which personal

knowledge is not required. See

Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice &

Procedure § 6782.

The witness is describing his

own opinions, based on his

years of experience as a

Supervisor of Elections, as to

which he has personal

knowledge.
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Designating Page Range Objection Response
Party
e The witness’s testimony is
based on his factual
understanding of the law,
which is relevant as he will be
the one to apply itin
Hillsborough County.
169:17-19 169:24 -170:7
e Calls for a legal conclusion, see | ® The witness is describing his
United States v. Barile, 286 own opinions, as to which he
F.3d 749, 760 (4th Cir. 2002). has personal knowledge.
o . This is a party-opponent
169:24 - 170:7 statement as to which personal
e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R: knqwledge i.s not required..See
Evid. 701. Wright & Miller, Fed. Practice &
. Procedure § 6782.
o Lack of Personal Knowiedge, i , .
cee Fed. R. Evid. 602 e The W|tnes§ s opinions are
e Lack of Foundation, see Fed. R. based.on his years of .
Evid. 603, expe.rlence as a Supervisor of
Elections.
Plaintiffs 175:2-182:9 | 175:2-8 175:2-8

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602. (“ don’t
remember writing that. And |
wouldn’t have had any direct
knowledge of that .. ...”)

42

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Basis for witness
answer could be established
through further questioning.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

e Foundation and personal
knowledge established at
174:8-9.

e Personal knowledge of the
email in question established;
witness testified he did not
write the particular sentence
highlighted in the email chain.
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Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

175:15-23

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

e Calls for Speculation, Fed. R.
Evid. 701.

175:15-23

e Objection waived because not

contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Basis for witness
answer could be established
through further questioning.

e This is a party-opponent

statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure

§ 6782.

e The witness is describing his
own opinions, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

e The witness’s opinions are
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

Plaintiffs

190:20 -
192:18

192:5-8

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.

43

192:5-9

e Objection waived because not

contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Basis for witness
answer could be established
through further questioning.

e This is a party-opponent

statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§6782.

e Question does not call for

speculation; question asks for
the witness’s
perspective/opinion based on
his personal experience as a
Supervisor of Elections.
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Designating
Party

Page Range

Objection

Response

192:15-18

e Speculation, Fed. R. Evid. 701.
(“1 think it’s totally
hypothetical.”)

e Lack of Personal Knowledge,
see Fed. R. Evid. 602.

192:15-18

e Objection waived because not
contemporaneously made. ECF
403 94 & Fed. R. Civ. P.
32(d)(3)(B). Basis for witness
answer could be established
through further questioning.

e This is a party-opponent
statement as to which personal
knowledge is not, in any event,
required. See Wright & Miller,
Fed. Practice & Procedure
§ 6782.

e The witness is describing his
own opinions, as to which he
has personal knowledge.

e The witness’s opinions are
based on his years of
experience as a Supervisor of
Elections.

44
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